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We have prepared a short summary of our views on the

principal Government reports and reviews that have been 

and are being undertaken in relation to our industry.

In this section we explain the structures in place to ensure

our business meets high standards of Corporate Governance.

This section covers our primary financial statements which

includes the consolidated income statement, balance sheet 

and cash flow.

We have included to help your understanding explanations of

terms and acronyms used in our Annual Report.

Additional information for shareholders and stakeholders can

be found on our website at www.redrow.co.uk, including

further details on Corporate Social Responsibility and our

annual Health and Safety Report.
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Why Redrow?

Redrow is recognised as one of the UK’s most successful residential and
commercial property developers. 

We achieve our success through buying the right land in the right locations,
designing and building quality living and working environments that meet
the needs of our customers and engage in honest and fair relationships with
all those who are involved with our business. It is through this philosophy of
resource optimisation that we are able to deliver value to our shareholders.

Redrow - laying the foundations for future growth.

2007 Highlights

2007 2006 
£m £m

Turnover 795.7 770.1
Operating profit 136.6 132.8
Profit before taxation 120.5 120.5
Net assets 577.8 513.8

Pence Pence
Earnings per share 52.9 52.9
Dividend per share 15.6 13.0

Owned land bank with planning increased by 6% to 17,700

plots representing over 3.5 years supply on an historic basis.

Approximately 40% of forward land bank of 24,400 plots

allocated within local plans.

Planning position strengthened with 97.5% of anticipated

2007/08 output having an implementable planning consent.

Reinvigoration of historic design differentiation through

establishing Centres of Design Excellence and training.

Doubled output of Debut product to more than 500 homes in

year to June 2007.

Restructured operational structure to deliver improved

efficiency but retain capacity to deliver growth.

Mixed Use & Regeneration performed ahead of expectations;

first income and profit delivered in Redrow Regeneration.
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Redrow trades from 10 regional housing companies, managing in excess of
100 housing developments across England, Scotland and Wales, completing
c.5,000 new homes annually. 

Redrow has the capacity to undertake mixed use developments and through
Redrow Regeneration focuses on developing flexible partnerships with
stakeholders to deliver situation specific mixed use solutions that support and
encourage new and sustainable communities.

The Group provides direct employment to approximately 1,300 people and
many more through its relationships with subcontractors and suppliers.  

Redrow is listed on the London Stock Exchange (Ticker: RDW) in the
Household Goods sector and in the FTSE 250.

Redrow at a glance

Homes

Signature Representing our primary offering to our customers,

with one bedroom apartments to five bedroom luxury houses,

the Signature range provides styles that allow for flexibility in

their elevational treatments to ensure they blend harmoniously

with the local environment.

In the City High specification apartment living. Visionary and

cutting-edge schemes that provide accommodation for those

wanting a contemporary lifestyle. 

Debut Ranging from one bedroom apartments to two storey

homes; via the use of modern methods of construction and

state of the art materials, we are creating handsome and

sustainable homes and communities affordable to the first time

buyer. 

Mixed Use & Regeneration

Mixed Use Our residential and commercial development

expertise allows us to unlock mixed use opportunities, creating

homes, office, retail, industrial and leisure schemes that

respond to planning requirements and satisfy occupier demand.

Urban Regeneration Through the dynamic and flexible

partnerships we create with stakeholders, we are able to

successfully tackle major regeneration schemes that provide

sustainable solutions and community benefits to the most

demanding of inner-city challenges.

For more information on our land bank, please turn to page 14.

Product portfolio Owned Land Bank with planning (plots)
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Residential v. Mixed Use and Regeneration (Operating Profit)

1 Residential = 95%

2 Mixed Use and Regeneration = 5%

Product Portfolio - % of business (Homes Turnover)

1 Signature = 82%

2 In the City = 13%

3 Debut = 5%

1
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1 Redrow Homes (Scotland) Limited
Example Development: Riverside Point, Braehead - part of
one of the biggest new build residential projects in Scotland,
on brownfield land just outside Glasgow. Our scheme of 346
homes benefits from an overall master plan for
redevelopment of the whole area, including M8 junction
improvements, road upgrades and a new riverside park.

2 Redrow Homes (Lancashire) Limited
Example Development: Fleetwood - a development of 380
houses and apartments on 22 acres of disused land around
the docks at Fleetwood. It forms part of landowner
Associated British Port’s wider vision for a new Fleetwood
Harbour Village.

3 Redrow Homes (North West) Limited
Example Development: Woodland Grange, Port Sunlight,
Wirral - previously part of the Unilever Port Sunlight complex,
Redrow has worked alongside Unilever and Wirral
Metropolitan Borough Council to design and secure planning
for a development of 192 houses and apartments on the 16
acre site which captures themes from the historic village.  

Where we operate

Redrow has a balanced portfolio of new developments across the UK. 
Our regional structure provides on the ground expertise, allowing our teams
to take advantage of local opportunities and build strong relationships with
land owners, land agents, planners, subcontractors and our customers.
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Company offices and examples of current developments

Over 30%
of plots acquired in 2006/07 were 

pulled through from our forward 

land bank
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4 Redrow Homes (Yorkshire) Limited
Example Development: Debut @ Selby - the development
represents the first of Redrow’s innovative and award
winning Debut schemes in Yorkshire. Comprising 123 one
and two bedroom homes, on the site of the former
Providence Mill in Selby.

5 Redrow Homes (Midlands) Limited
Example Development: Hemisphere, Edgbaston - Redrow’s
first joint development with one of Birmingham’s biggest
landowners. Hemisphere comprises 344 apartments and
penthouses as part of the £100 million, nine acre Edgbaston
Mill mixed use scheme adjacent to Edgbaston Cricket Ground. 

6 Redrow Homes (South Midlands) Limited
Example Development: Loves Farm, St Neots,
Cambridgeshire - a 12 acre portion of a major new
development adjacent to St Neots station where Redrow will
create 256 new homes which capture the essence of our
urban design philosophy. 

7 Redrow Homes (Eastern) Limited
Example Development: The Rodings, Loughton, Essex - a ten
acre site close to Epping Forest where, by incorporating the
Essex Design guide with our own design principles, we will
create a new sustainable community of over 250 houses and
apartments.  

8 Redrow Homes (Southern) Limited
Example Development: Farnborough Central, Farnborough -
formerly part of the Royal Aircraft Establishment
headquarters, Redrow worked with the owner to secure
change of use on this 12 acre site that will comprise 476
new and refurbished homes, with a developable value of 
c. £85 million.

9 Redrow Homes (South Wales) Limited
Example Development: Alexandra Gate, Newport, Gwent -
leading the multi million pound regeneration of Newport, this
waterfront development of approximately 400 houses and
apartments is situated on the site of the former Black
Clawson engineering works, overlooking the River Usk.

10 Redrow Homes (South West) Limited
Example Development: Cheswick, North Bristol - a flagship
77 acre sustainable development comprising a high quality
urban village of 1,250 plus new homes and a mixed use
neighbourhood centre that follows best practice urban design
principles for a safe and ecologically sound place to live and
work.

11 Redrow Homes (West Country) Limited *
Example Development: Vision at Devonport - a major
regeneration programme in association with English
Partnerships, which is transforming the former MoD South
Yard stores enclave into a mixed use neighbourhood of 463
new homes, shops, offices and community facilities.  

12 Redrow Regeneration plc
Example Development: Barking Town Square - an award
winning designed scheme where, in partnership with the
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham, Redrow is
regenerating the Town Square area which includes over 500
apartments, a Life Long Learning Centre and 40,000 sq ft of
commercial space.

* Redrow’s Exeter based operation is part of the larger South West regional
company.

 



Chairman’s statement

Redrow has clear strategies for the core components of its business: a long
term approach to land acquisition, a development philosophy based on high
quality design and a commitment to developing the skills of our employees.

This is my first statement as Chairman of Redrow plc following my
appointment in July 2007 and I am delighted to be taking on this
important role. Redrow possesses many strong attributes especially
the quality of its land holdings, its attention to design and
innovation and the experience and capabilities of its people. 
The Group continues to invest in and further enhance these
important areas so as to take advantage of the opportunities in its
market place.

2006/07 Performance
The UK new homes market in 2006/07 was stable but competitive
in an interest rate environment that saw four rate increases in the
period. The planning regime continues to be inefficient and grows
in complexity and as elsewhere in our industry, this resulted in
delays in bringing new outlets on stream. In response, the business
focused on delivering an appropriate rate of sale from its
developments to optimise returns and to support the forward order
book for 2007/08, with overall forward sales up 6.4% at June 2007.

Group turnover increased by 3.3% to £795.7m (2006: £770.1m).
Legal completions increased by 1.9% to 4,823 new homes and
there was a strong contribution from our Mixed Use and
Regeneration activities. Operating profit was 2.9% higher at
£136.6m (2006: £132.8m) with the operating margin in the
Homes business in line with expectations at 17.1% (2006: 17.5%).
There was continued investment in the land bank and the number
of owned plots with planning consent increased to 17,700 plots
(2006: 16,750). This investment, together with the increase in
interest rates, resulted in higher financing costs at £15.3m 
(2006: £11.5m). The Group made a profit before tax of £120.5m
and basic earnings per share of 52.9p, both unchanged from the
previous year.

The level of capital employed in the business grew over the last
twelve months, principally as we increased our investment in land
by £118.4m to £641.4m to support our future growth. As a
consequence, return on capital employed declined to 19.4%
(2006: 22.0%), still well ahead of the Group’s comparable cost of
capital. At June 2007, gearing was 30.7% (2006: 25.3%) so
providing the capacity for further investment in our land bank.

Dividend
The twelve months to June 2007 represented the first year of our
two year commitment to increase the dividend by 20% per
annum. The dividend for the year will be 15.6 pence per share
(2006: 13.0p), subject to shareholder approval at the Annual
General Meeting. The proposed final dividend of 7.8 pence per
share reflects the rebalancing of the dividend payment made in
2006/07 to improve the timing of cash flows to shareholders
through a higher interim dividend payment. In the last five years,
the dividend has increased at a compound growth rate of over
20% per annum and we have reduced our dividend cover from 
6.4 times to its present level of 3.4 times.

The Board
There have been significant changes in the composition of the
Board since the last Annual Report. With much sadness we
announced in April the death of my predecessor as Chairman,
Robert Jones. Robert is remembered with much fondness having
been a Director for nearly ten years and Chairman since October
2000. Jim Martin, who was our Senior Non-Executive Director,
acted as Interim Chairman at short notice and after ten years of
service as a Non-Executive Director stands down on 
11 September 2007. The Board wishes to acknowledge the
important contributions of both Robert and Jim to Redrow’s 
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development. I would like to thank Jim for his stewardship in the
intervening period and for his invaluable advice upon my
appointment. Brian Duckworth, who has served on the Board
since June 2002, has taken on the position of Senior 
Non-Executive Director. 

This year also sees two long standing Executive Directors leave the
business. Each has played a significant part in making Redrow one
of the UK’s leading residential developers. Paul Pedley has been an
integral part of Redrow for over 22 years as Finance Director,
Managing Director, Chief Executive and since August 2005,
Executive Deputy Chairman. He has been a leading figure in the
industry for many years and in 2006 was awarded an OBE for
services to business in Wales. Paul will retire on 30 September
2007. Barry Harvey was with the Company for over twelve years
and for the last nine as a Director of Redrow plc in the role of
Northern Regional Chairman. Barry stood down from the Board
on 29 June 2007. The Board wishes to record its appreciation for
the long and distinguished service given by both Paul and Barry to
Redrow. I am delighted that David Campbell-Kelly has joined the
senior management team as Northern Regional Chairman having
been with Redrow for 13 years and for the last 8 years as a
Managing Director and more recently as a Regional Chairman.

We have been fortunate to be joined by two excellent new 
Non-Executive Directors on the Board. Denise Jagger joined the
Board on 17 January 2007 and Bob Bennett was appointed on 
1 May 2007. Bob has since taken on responsibility for
Chairmanship of the Audit Committee. We look forward to 
their contribution to the continuing success of Redrow in the
coming years.                            

Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility
Redrow recognises its responsibility to its shareholders and other
stakeholders and there is a detailed report on corporate
governance and an update on our work in the area of corporate
social responsibility within the Annual Report. We recognise the
increasing importance of sustainability issues which we are
affording a greater focus in our operations. Alongside our peer
group and stakeholders from other sectors we have embraced the
Government’s 2016 Zero Carbon Commitment. Redrow is the
only housebuilder to be a member of the World Wildlife Fund’s
UK Forest and Trade Network and we work with that organisation
to increase our use of timber from well managed and sustainable
sources. We believe in providing a safe environment for everyone
on our sites and were delighted to secure a Gold Award from the
Royal Society for Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) for Health
and Safety for the second successive year.

Finally, we continue to invest in our people at all levels to allow
them to develop their skills and to support our business objectives.
The Redrow Team in the widest sense is responsible for achieving
success within the business. We would like to thank not only our
own employees but also our suppliers, sub-contractors, consultants
and advisers for their commitment in making Redrow successful.

Looking Forward
The UK economy overall appears relatively resilient with
employment levels remaining strong. We entered the new
financial year with a much stronger position in terms of
implementable planning consents so that the outcome for Redrow
in 2007/08 will largely depend on the strength of the markets in
which we operate. Some lead indicators suggest that the increases
in interest rates since August 2006 are beginning to have a
dampening effect on the market and we have positioned the
business to best respond to prevailing conditions.    

The industry in which we operate is increasingly in the public eye.
The shortage and affordability of homes, together with the
requirement to respond to the challenge of sustainability, become
ever more prominent issues. We are witnessing an unprecedented
level of new initiatives from Government and we also have the
market study into UK housebuilding by the Office of Fair Trading
taking place over the next twelve months.

With challenge comes opportunity and Redrow has clear strategies
for the core components of its business: a long term approach to
land acquisition, a development philosophy based on high quality
design and a commitment to developing the skills of our
employees. This leaves us well placed to capitalise on the
opportunities available in our markets for the benefit of our
shareholders. 

Alan Bowkett
Chairman
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The UK housing market

Hot Topics in the Housebuilding Sector
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The Code for Sustainable Homes
Sustainable development meets the needs of the present without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
requirements. It is widely recognised that new housing has to be
more sustainable and to reduce carbon emissions and water usage.
Government statistics show that a quarter of the UK’s current
carbon emissions arise from the energy requirements of homes and
the Government has set targets to significantly reduce carbon
emissions from new homes.

The Code for Sustainable Homes, a national standard for
sustainable design and construction of new homes came into effect
in April 2007. Building regulations will be progressively tightened
to reduce carbon emissions by 25% in 2010, by 44% in 2013 with
the objective that all new homes should be zero carbon from 2016.  

Redrow’s view: Redrow will play its part in improving the
sustainability of the homes we build. In order to meet the most
demanding targets of the Code it will require a number of stakeholders
to act together, including suppliers and utility companies and Redrow
has already made its commitment by joining with other stakeholders in 
signing up to the CLG’s 2016 commitment to zero carbon homes.

Home Information Packs (HIPs)
The Home Information Pack (HIP) was originally proposed by the
Government as a means of increasing the speed and certainty of
the process for purchasing a home by requiring certain
information, including searches and an energy performance
certificate to be provided by the seller to the purchaser. 
The implementation of HIPs has been delayed and the
requirements scaled down and it is being introduced on a phased
basis from 1 August 2007. From that date, HIPs are required for
the sale of four bedroom properties and larger, with the
requirement being extended to three bedroom properties from 
10 September 2007. The Government proposes that smaller
properties should be phased in as soon as sufficient energy assessors
are fully qualified.

Redrow’s view: The introduction of energy performance certificates
which allow house purchasers to understand better the energy
performance of their prospective home is to be welcomed. However, the
pack potentially increases the cost of the housebuying process at an
earlier stage without any real payback for customers. The introduction
of HIPs risks impacting the liquidity of the housing market by providing
disincentives to existing homeowners to market their properties. 

There has been a significant increase in interest in the housebuilding and
development sectors from Central Government as it seeks to tackle what is
increasingly identified as a “housing crisis”. Over the last few years and in the
last twelve months in particular this has brought further new challenges and
opportunities for the industry:

Debut homes at Hilton, near Derby - affordable and sustainable
living providing a real sense of community for the first time buyer.

Stamford Brook, Altrincham near Manchester - a unique 
eco-friendly collaboration with the National Trust.
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Callcutt review
This is a Government commissioned review by John Callcutt, who
was previously Chief Executive of Crest Nicholson plc and English
Partnerships. Its terms of reference are to:

Examine how the supply of new homes is influenced by the
nature and structure of the housebuilding industry, the business
models and its supply chain, including land, materials and skills;
and

Consider how these factors influence the delivery of new homes
to achieve the Government’s target, meet homebuyers’
requirements and aspirations, achieve high standards of energy
efficiency and sustainability as set out in the Code for
Sustainable Homes, and progress to a zero carbon standard

The review was launched in February 2007 and is due to report
and make its recommendations in Autumn 2007.

Redrow’s view: This review follows on from the Review of Housing
Supply undertaken by Kate Barker in March 2004. It has a narrower
focus upon the housebuilding industry itself and we await its findings
with interest.

Office of Fair Trading Market Study
The Office of Fair Trading (OFT) announced on 22 June 2007 its
intention to conduct a market study into housebuilding in the
UK. Its study will concentrate on two particular areas:

Delivery of housing: whether land which is suitable for
development is being effectively brought through to the
planning approval stage and whether land with planning
permission is being converted effectively into homes; and

Customer satisfaction: homebuyer’s level of satisfaction with
new homes they purchase

The study is expected to report in Summer 2008.

Redrow’s view: We view the process as positive as it may provide
further evidence of impediments to development and suggest means to
improve the efficiency of the current planning processes to the benefit of
homebuyers and the industry. We recognise the importance of delivering
good levels of customer satisfaction which is already a major focus for
Redrow. We look forward to participating in the study.

The Sycamores, Ailsworth, Peterborough - ‘coming home’ to a development in keeping with the local area.
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Planning White Paper
In May 2007, the Department for Communities and Local
Government published a white paper entitled “Planning for a
sustainable future”. This covered a range of challenges faced by
the planning system. Key areas include:

Proposals for the Government to produce National Policy
Statements to ensure there is a clear policy framework for
nationally significant infrastructure and to introduce an
Infrastructure Planning Commission to make decisions on such
projects

Proposals to improve the town and country planning system to
provide a positive framework for delivering sustainable
development for example by prioritising the use of previously
developed land and finalising the Planning Policy Statement on
climate change

Proposals to continue to encourage positive planning based on
place shaping by local authorities and promoting community
engagement in the process

The consultation period for the paper closed on 17 August 2007.

Redrow’s view: Much focus was given to the proposed improvements
in the planning process at its two extremes, namely for major national
infrastructure projects, or, at the other end of the spectrum, to home
improvements. We are concerned that there appeared to be few
proposals of significance that would enhance the speed and outcome of
planning for housebuilding generally.

Planning Green Paper
In July 2007, the Department for Communities and Local
Government published a green paper entitled “Homes for the
future: more sustainable, more affordable”. This covers a wide
range of issues challenging the provision of housing in the UK
today. Key areas include:

Confirming previously announced housing supply targets

Proposals for continuing planning reform 

Proposals for Government and the public sector to unlock
surplus land for additional new and affordable homes

Considering the need for well designed homes and places and
giving targets for carbon emissions

Detailing targets and proposals for affordable housing 

The consultation period for the paper is open until 15 October
2007.

Redrow’s view: The Green Paper sets out how the Government
proposes to increase housing supply to meet a target of 240,000 new
homes p.a. in England. We welcome the proposal to incentivise local
authorities for delivering new homes rather than the current target of
planning decisions but need to be convinced that it addresses the
fundamental issue of the divergence between Central Government
aspirations to increase housing supply and the response of Local
Government in terms of delivering planning permissions for residential
development to deliver the goal.

Poulton Manor, Wirral - an apartment scheme designed to sit comfortably within a picturesque landscaped environment.

The UK housing market
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Planning Gain Supplement
Following on from the case made in the Barker Review for a
Planning Gain Supplement (PGS) to capture a portion of land
value uplift created by the planning process to fund additional
infrastructure, the Government produced a consultation paper in
December 2005 on PGS. The recent planning green paper
explained the Government’s current proposals with key features of
PGS being:

PGS would be levied at a modest rate to ensure that incentives
to develop land are preserved

In England, planning obligations under S106 powers would be
scaled back

In England at least 70% of PGS revenues would be paid directly
to the Local Planning Authority which granted the planning
permission to which the PGS liability is attached

Local Authorities would be expected to use PGS resources to
secure delivery of infrastructure in pursuit of objectives
identified in their statutory Local Development Framework,
with the remaining share of PGS revenues raised in a region
returned to that region to support regional infrastructure

PGS would not be introduced earlier than 2009

The green paper however indicated that a PGS bill is provisional
and that if, prior to the Pre-Budget Report later in the year, a
better way is identified of ensuring local communities receive
significantly more of the benefit from planning gain, the
Government will be prepared to defer next parliamentary session’s
legislation on PGS. It invited views from key stakeholders on
possible alternative approaches.

Redrow’s view: There has long been a debate regarding if, how and
what proportion of the value uplift that can arise to a landowner on the
grant of a residential or commercial planning consent might be
redistributed to fund the impact of development. The Government
appears committed to some form of taxation on uplift and this being the
case, Redrow seeks a system that will operate with simplicity, certainty
and on a forward looking, not retrospective basis. Furthermore, any
system will have to be balanced to ensure it does not discourage land
being brought forward for development at a time when the country has
an urgent requirement for new homes.

Stourscombe Vale, Launceston, Cornwall - Signature range homes built to traditional Cornish design principles.

 



Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review

Our strategy is to sustain our long term approach to land acquisition and to
capitalise upon the quality of our current and forward land bank. Allied to
this, our increasing focus on urban design and the strength and experience in
our management teams best position Redrow to address the challenges and
take advantage of the opportunities in our marketplace.

Introduction
Our strategy is to sustain our long term approach to land
acquisition and to capitalise upon the quality of our current and
forward land bank. Allied to this, our increasing focus on urban
design and the strength and experience in our management teams
best position Redrow to address the challenges and take advantage
of the opportunities in our marketplace.

In the last two years we have made significant progress in growing
our current land holdings and improving the quality of our forward
land bank. The current land bank has increased by nearly 20%
over this time and, within this, our owned land bank with
planning has grown by 12% to 17,700 plots. This has enabled us
to strengthen our position in terms of planning, as 97.5% of our
anticipated output in 2007/08 now has detailed and
implementable planning consent. This provides much greater
certainty as regards the delivery of sales outlets into our markets in
the new financial year. Our forward land bank stands at 24,400
plots and we have improved its quality with a higher proportion of
allocations. We are developing our Mixed Use and Regeneration
businesses as a further source of long term land as well as
additional income streams. We are delighted that Redrow
Regeneration made its first contribution in 2006/07.

Urban design and the delivery of high quality developments
represent important points of differentiation for Redrow. They
enable us to engage more positively with planning authorities and
to address one of the key issues facing our industry which is to
secure planning consents within shorter timescales. This approach
further enhances the desirability of our products to our customers
to drive increased value for Redrow whilst the use of core house
types enables efficiency and quality in construction and control of
our cost base.

In the last 12 months, we have restructured our business to be
more efficient whilst preserving the capability to grow our
business. Our continuing long term strategy for land acquisition
and our design led approach to product reaffirms historic values
and strengths in Redrow. We are focusing on our core
competencies of finding development opportunities and using our
product portfolio and design skills to unlock value for the benefit
of shareholders.

Overview of Performance 
In 2006/07, we concentrated on maximising returns over the
medium term through the delivery of an appropriate rate of sale
and forward sales position to optimise the returns from our land
bank. As we highlighted in March 2007, this was a response to the
growing inefficiencies and complexity of the planning system
which had delayed some of our sites from obtaining a detailed,
implementable planning consent. As a consequence of our sales
strategy, legal completions grew by 1.9% to 4,823 homes 
(2006: 4,735).

The sales market remained stable but competitive against a
backdrop of four increases in interest rates in the financial period.
Stronger conditions were experienced in the South East of
England and in Scotland than in other parts of the country. 
Our sales reservations in 2006/07 totalled 4,953, an increase of
3.7% on the previous year. Sales in the second half of the financial
year remained at satisfactory levels with reservations of our
Signature and ‘In the City’ homes together up 3.5% on the same
period last year. We also strengthened our overall forward sales
position which increased by 6.4% to 2,148 homes as compared
with 2,018 at the beginning of the financial year.

Right Neil Fitzsimmons Chief Executive

Left David Arnold Group Finance Director
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Operating profit increased by 2.9% to £136.6m (2006: £132.8m)
with profit before tax unchanged at £120.5m. Redrow’s balance
sheet remains strong with net debt at the year end of £177.6m
(2006: £129.8m) representing gearing of 30.7% (2006: 25.3%).
Return on capital employed in the year to June 2007 was 19.4%
(2006: 22.0%), primarily reflecting our increased level of capital
employed as we continue to invest in our land bank.   

In our Homes operations, we legally completed 4,728 new homes,
in line with the previous year (2006: 4,735). Legal completions of
our Signature product were 3,689 homes (2006: 4,027). This was
short of our original volume aspirations at the start of the year and
reflected the planning environment and our sales strategy. 
The average selling price of Signature increased by 1.0% to
£167,900 (2006: £166,200). ‘In the City’ legal completions were
ahead of our expectations at 537 (2006: 495). The average selling
price was 13.7% higher at £182,200 (2006: £160,200) as a result of
the mix of developments on stream. We more than doubled the
output of our affordable Debut product to 502 homes (2006: 213)
which sold at an average selling price of £79,100 (2006: £79,200).
With a higher proportion of Debut homes in 2007, the turnover in
Homes was 1.1% lower at £757.0m (2006: £765.5m).

Gross margins within the Homes business were 23.1% in 2007
(2006: 23.2%) and operating margins were in line with our
expectations at 17.1% (2006: 17.5%). In a strong land market and
in line with our land strategy, we generated profit of £15.1m
(2006: £8.9m) from the disposal of surplus land holdings during

the year. This included £9.1m (2006: £3.6m) from current
developments where we released value on large sites to enable the
efficient use of capital and £6.0m (2006: £5.3m) from sundry land
holdings.

We maintained tight control on our overheads which increased 
by 2.3% during the year to £45.0m (2006: £44.0m) in our Homes
operations. During 2007, we rationalised our fixed cost base to
increase its efficiency whilst still providing capacity for growth
within our regional structure. The costs of this restructuring are
included in our 2007 results. We currently anticipate that the
overhead cost within our Homes operations in the 12 months
ending June 2008 should be no higher than in 2006/07 
which should benefit our operating margins in the forthcoming
financial year.

The Homes business now has 10 principal offices with a satellite
office in Exeter to manage our activities in the West Country.
We have strengthened our management and land bank in
Scotland. Our investment in the large site at Cheswick in Bristol,
together with our major forward land holdings at Exeter and
Taunton provide a platform for growth in the South West and
West Country. We also continue to pursue our strategy to increase
our presence in the South East and have increased our investment
in both current and forward land in this important market.

Our Mixed Use and Regeneration businesses performed ahead of
expectations, delivering an operating profit, including our share of

Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review     13

97.5%
the proportion of anticipated output in

2007/08 with an implementable planning 

consent.

Signature product at The Myle, Colchester, Essex.
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Forward / strategic land
Timescales for planning consent: Long term.

Advantages: Land can be acquired at a discount to open market value.

Disadvantages: Risk that land does not gain consent and timing of delivery of planning consent.

Skills required: Planning skills to identify potential sales and investment in promoting sites through the

planning system.

Redrow’s view: We have an excellent track record in our ability to convert strategic land into active

developments, whilst optimising the development value for the landowner. We have

expanded our skill bases from greenfield sites to innovative approaches such as targeting

more brownfield sites and embarking upon major regeneration projects.

Added value land
Timescales for planning consent: Medium term.

Advantages: Higher probability of gaining consent.

Disadvantages: Often in competition with a limited number of other developers and timing of delivery of

planning consent.

Skills required: Ability to resolve planning, technical and legal issues for landowners.

Redrow’s view: This type of land is the focus of our current land acquisition strategy and we have invested

in our planners and designers in order to sell these skills to the landowners with whom we

work, accelerating the conversion process whilst optimising land values for vendors.

Consented land
Timescales for planning consent: Short term.

Advantages: Land comes with consent and delivers certainty.

Disadvantages: Land is on the ‘open market’ and commands a premium price.

Skills required: Negotiation and design skills to optimise returns.

Redrow’s view: We invest in this type of land for tactical reasons, in order to gain fast track access into new

areas and to optimise the use of our fixed costbase. 

Land
Our land bank strategy is critical to the future growth of the business and
ensuring that value can be created for shareholders. Our strategy is to
capitalise upon the quality of our current and forward land bank and to
retain our long term approach to acquiring land. We invest in a balanced
portfolio of different types of land, balancing return and risk.

Forward Land Bank (plots)
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Forward Land Bank = 24,400 plots
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24,400
we have 24,400 plots in our

forward land bank.

Imperial Heights at Jennett’s Park, Bracknell - a development brought through 
from our forward land bank.

joint ventures, of £6.6m (2006: £0.7m) on turnover of £38.7m
(2006: £4.6m). We achieved sales of completed commercial
developments and land to end users across a number of locations,
including St David’s Park and Buckshaw Village, and importantly
we achieved our first income from Redrow Regeneration as it
successfully delivered the Lifelong Learning Centre and the first
95 homes of Phase 1 at Barking Town Square.

The Board has considered the position of Framing Solutions plc,
the Group’s 50:50 joint venture with Corus. Redrow’s share of the
operating loss of Framing Solutions in the year to June 2007 was
£0.7m (2006: £0.8m), with the attributable loss after interest and
tax being £0.6m (2006: £0.6m). Our involvement in the joint
venture since 2002 has enabled us to gain a greater understanding
of modern methods of construction which are now more prevalent
and for which the market is now more established. Taking these
factors into consideration, the Board has decided that it no longer

sees the benefit of having a direct involvement in this area of
activity and we are investigating our options accordingly.

Land
The key element in delivering sustainable and profitable growth
rests in the quality of the land bank. In a competitive land market,
where the value of existing sites with planning is increasing, we
continue to promote a long term approach to sourcing our land
requirements to deliver margins in excess of those available in the
open market. These higher returns represent our reward for the
skills and capital we invest in adding value during the planning
process.  

Through the strength and experience we possess within our
regional land and planning teams, we continue to identify new
forward land opportunities and to promote existing sites through
the planning system. Our track record in forward land over many
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Signature product at John Fielding Gardens, Llantarnam, South Wales.

Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review

 



Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review     17

years demonstrates to landowners our ability to secure planning
consents and optimise development values.  

In 2007, approximately 30% of the net additions to our owned
land bank with planning were secured through our investment in
forward land. Within our forward land bank of 24,400 plots with a
realistic prospect of securing a consent, we have 25 forward land
sites representing 10,300 plots spread across our operations that
are allocated in local plans. Our existing forward land
opportunities have significant value not recognised in our balance
sheet and represent a source of higher margin opportunity in the
future.

The current land bank as at June 2007 was 20,700 plots,
representing in excess of four years’ supply (2006: 21,000).  
In sourcing our current land opportunities we look for
opportunities to add value to the development process by resolving
planning, technical or legal issues. In 2007, approximately 45% of
land was acquired through this route delivering land for our
business that should produce profit at margins better than is
typically available on sites with a planning consent sold on the
open market.  

The balance of our land is secured in the open market where sites
already have a planning permission. In these instances, we use our
skills in design to be competitive in generating land values at the
appropriate levels of return. Such sites can support volumes where

they deliver incremental income without an increase in fixed
overheads and can be particularly beneficial in growing output in
our newer business.

We have made good progress in converting land controlled under
contract into our owned land bank with planning. At June 2007,
we held 17,700 plots with planning, representing a 5.7% increase
on the 16,750 plots held as at June 2006. Our Homes companies
increased their land owned with planning to 17,280 plots with the
balance of 420 plots held in Redrow Regeneration.

The average plot cost of our Homes land bank with planning was
£36,300 (2006: £31,000) representing 20.4% (2006: 18.3%) of the
estimated average selling price of those plots. This increase reflects
our strategy of growing our presence in the South East of England
where the relationship between land cost and selling price is
intrinsically higher. During 2007, we invested a net £241.8m in
new land at an average plot cost of £43,900. 31% of our net
additions were in the South East and as at June 2007, 20% of our
Homes land bank owned with planning was in this market as
compared with 16% as at the previous year end.                

A key issue in the development process is in securing
implementable, detailed planning consents to enable a site to be
converted into a sales outlet. We now have 97.5% of our
anticipated output for the financial year ended June 2008 with
implementable planning secured. 

Barking Central - winner of the prestigious MIPIM Architectural Review Future Project Award.
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Signature
Signature is a highly flexible product that allows us to change elevational styles and be sympathetic to the character of the

surrounding area. Through the use of a core housetype range we achieve the benefits of managing our cost base and efficiency in the

build process. By recognising the importance of responding to the local context and with our focus on urban design, we can engage

positively with planning officers and meet planning requirements effectively and efficiently. The Signature range optimises coverage

with a marketable array of homes yet achieves quality environments and communities in which people will choose to live.

In the City
Redrow’s In the City apartment schemes have secured numerous awards for the quality of their design and contribution to their

surrounding environment. Whether our schemes are regenerating inner cities or providing high quality accommodation in premium

locations, our developments offer excellent value to customers looking for a contemporary place to live or in which to invest.

Debut
Debut properties directly address the need for affordable homes for people to buy, putting property ownership within reach of key

workers, first-time buyers and those on low incomes, whilst embracing high standards of quality and sustainability. The unique form of

our Debut developments ensures that we are making the best possible use of the available land and providing environments that

create a real sense of community.

Mixed Use & Regeneration
Successful mixed use and regeneration developments require dedication, determination and imagination. We employ all these

qualities to plan, develop and execute successful mixed use schemes in areas that will encourage self-supporting, safe, harmonious

and sustainable communities. To achieve this we work with all stakeholders, including those living in the locality, to develop and tailor

specific solutions for each project that recognise the priorities of all concerned.

Product
The Redrow product embraces a portfolio of housestyles and commercial
developments that, when combined with our urban design approach, enable
us to create places where people will want to live and work, that complement
the environments in which they are built. The portfolio meets the demands
of an ever more discerning public combining outstanding aesthetics, high
quality construction and value to our customers.

18 Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review  

Product Portfolio - % of business (Homes units)

1 Signature = 78%

2 In the City = 11%

3 Debut = 11%

1 2 3
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Effective management of our investment in land is an essential
ingredient in providing the capability to deliver growth at
appropriate margins whilst retaining a return on capital employed
significantly ahead of our cost of capital. Redrow continues to
invest in larger sites which provide opportunities to improve
margins over a development’s lifetime through enhanced design
and value creation derived through its quality. We also look to use
such sites to generate outlets through trading land with our peer
group as well as releasing value for shareholders at the appropriate
time and managing our overall investment.

Product
Product plays a prominent role within our business. The
Government is setting significant challenges for the industry in
terms of meeting improved sustainability levels and our Product
Development Team is assessing the ways in which these challenges
can be addressed in a cost effective way that delivers a home that
meets the aspirations of our customers.

Product maximises the value inherent in the land whilst ensuring
the desirability and attractiveness of our developments to our
customers. The call for improved design from Government and
other bodies requires that the product must be viewed in a much
more holistic way. Through our focus on urban design we view the
product as not just the individual home but one that embraces all
the constituent elements of the development to deliver
communities where people will want to live. This includes the
street scenes and interaction of roads, the treatment of public
realm through the use of open space and use of hard and soft

landscaping to deliver a premium offering to our customers which
will drive value.

Our Signature and Debut ranges provide a strong platform in
terms of house types to meet this objective particularly when
taken with our award winning record on our ‘In the City’
developments. This platform, together with the design skills
within our business through our Regional Directors of Design and
establishing Centres of Design Excellence in our regions, provides
the tools to capitalise on our progressive design philosophy.  
This is already being reflected in our developments now coming
on stream and this approach reinvigorates a historic element of
differentiation in Redrow’s heritage. 

The Debut range has been enthusiastically received by customers
who otherwise would not have been able to secure a foothold on
the home owning ladder. In total, over 700 Debut customers are
now living in affordable open market new homes. Our customer
survey results show that 94% of Debut homeowners were satisfied
with their home. Debut’s imaginative and innovative elements
have been recognised in over 11 different awards. However, local
authorities in England and Wales have generally remained focused
on traditional approaches to tackling affordability through social
housing for rent and shared equity through Registered Social
Landlords. This has been further reinforced by the Government’s
definition of affordable housing in recent planning guidance
which is likely to impact our original volume aspirations for this
product. 

Signature product at Oakley Vale, Corby, Northamptonshire.
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Signature product at Buckshaw Village, Chorley - one of the largest brownfield mixed use regeneration projects in the north of England.

Debut product at Pavillion Lock, Hanley, Stoke-on-Trent.
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There is now an increasing focus in Government policy upon
expanding the supply of new affordable homes. In Debut, we have
a product with strong positive customer endorsement from which
we can leverage future opportunities and it will continue to
represent part of our armoury. However, the overall priority for
Redrow must be to manage our resources to deliver value to our
shareholders in the most effective and efficient way and on
sourcing development opportunities without a specific
concentration on one element of our portfolio.

The Redrow product offering continues to embrace mixed use
development which in recent years has been strengthened by our
new Redrow Regeneration business concentrating on major
opportunities in London and the South East. We continue to
deliver value from our mixed use schemes at St David’s Park and
Buckshaw Village and are proceeding with new opportunities at
City Wharf in Lichfield, Vision in Devonport and at Cheswick in
Bristol.

In Redrow Regeneration, we are successfully moving forward with
Phase 1 at Barking Town Square with the Lifelong Learning
Centre handed over and 95 of the 246 apartments legally
completing in 2006/07. The balance of the apartments in Phase 1
will legally complete in the new financial year. We secured
planning on Phase 2 of the development in June 2007 and this
comprises 272 apartments and 40,000 sq ft of office and retail
space. We have already sold 96 apartments within Phase 2 and the

overall scheme will be an important catalyst in regenerating the
centre of Barking. Progress continues to be made at Watford
Junction through our Joint Venture, Waterford Park, as we explore
with Network Rail how we can optimise the regeneration of this
high profile site. We continue to investigate further opportunities
to utilise our regeneration skills.      

Celestia, Cardiff (in centre of photograph adjacent to crane) - a flagship waterfront regeneration scheme at the 
heart of the resurgent Cardiff Bay area.
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People
We continue to invest in the skills of our people through training@redrow
and in 2007 provided over 5,000 training days from essential induction
courses for new employees to more specific initiatives which support the
quality of our business.

People
The Redrow Team is an essential element in the delivery of our
business objectives and the Board appreciates the commitment
they make to our performance. We have an Executive team which
has accumulated in excess of 130 years involvement in the
development industry and a team of Managing Directors in our
operating companies with significant experience to take Redrow
forward.

The labour market for high quality professional people continues
to be tight within our sector and we recognise that stable teams
are important in the efficiency and quality of our business.  
As part of our review of our operational cost base we have 
re-examined and adjusted our remuneration packages to ensure we
remain competitive in the marketplace. This has been achieved
within our overall objective of maintaining Homes’ overheads in
the new financial year in line with 2006/07.

To retain and motivate our employees, we continue to invest in
the skills of our people through training@redrow with its dedicated
facility at Tamworth. In 2007, we provided over 5,000 training
days from essential induction courses for new employees to more
specific initiatives which support the quality of our business.  
As part of our focus upon design, we are working with Oxford
Brookes University and the Commission for Architecture in the
Built Environment (CABE) to enhance the skills and awareness of
key members of our team on how good design can be used to best
advantage for Redrow. Over 30 Assistant Site Managers have now
been through, or are progressing with, our accreditation
programme which includes the achievement of an appropriate
NVQ qualification and which supports our objective of improving
build quality. In recent years we have worked hard on the quality
of construction and we have experienced a significant
improvement in standards relative to National House Building
Council (NHBC) industry benchmarks. We are also delighted that
we have seen a significant increase in the number of our Site
Managers achieving NHBC Pride in the Job Awards in 2007.

Improving build quality is an important element in raising levels
of customer satisfaction. Our customer service surveys carried out
by an independent research organisation showed that our
satisfaction levels increased from 75% to 79% in 2007 and the
proportion of customers who would recommend Redrow to a
friend increased from 80% to 83%. In 2007, five of our companies
achieved satisfaction levels in excess of 85% and all but one
company achieved a recommendation level of over 75%.  
We recognise we have more to do in meeting the expectations of

our customers and to help secure this objective we have appointed
external specialists to review our approach in this aspect of our
business and recommend ways of achieving further improvements.    

Redrow has continued to deliver improvements in Health and
Safety in the last twelve months. In 2007 we achieved a Gold
award for the second year running from the Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents. As Principal Contractor there were no
fatalities on our sites in 2007 (2006: nil), no prosecutions for
Health and Safety issues (2006: nil), no Prohibition Notices 
(2006: 2) and only one Improvement Notice issued (2006: 1).
The number of injuries reported under the Reporting of Injuries,
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR)
stood at 41 (2006: 40) and the level of injuries requiring first aid
reduced by 10%. 
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Mel Roscoe, Site Manager at Oakside Park, Kesgrave receiving
his NHBC ‘Pride in the Job’ award for the second year running.
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Achievements

The Group achieved a Gold Award in the Royal Society for the

Protection of Accidents (RoSPA) Occupational Health and

Safety Awards for the second consecutive year. This award is

in recognition of our contribution to raising health and safety

standards across all our sites. Additionally, every regional

housing company within the Group has been awarded a British

Safety Council (BSC) International Safety Award.  

A record 12 Redrow site managers have secured NHBC Pride

in the Job Awards. This is a 70% increase on the previous

year’s performance and demonstrates the progress Redrow is

making in continually raising quality standards.

11 Redrow assistant site managers graduated this year from

our unique training and development course, achieving NVQ

Level 3 in Construction Site Supervision. Now in its third year,

the Assistant Site Manager Development Programme is part of

our overall commitment to raising the competency of our

construction staff above the industry average, as well as

increasing employee retention and job satisfaction.    

Redrow’s commitment to ‘home growing’ a new generation of

professional and accomplished site managers is further

evidenced by the fact we now directly employ a record 70

apprentices within a variety of trades.

All 200 development sales consultants attended our second

annual National Sales Training event and are now enrolled

onto the Redrow Sales Accreditation Programme, providing

courses and on-the-job training aimed at enhancing sales

performance and customer service delivery.

Courses provided by training@redrow to equip our employees

with the skills required in a modern development business

Sales & Customer Service

Health & Safety 

Construction 

Personal Skills

Management & Induction
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5,000
we delivered over 5,000 training days to

our staff in the last twelve months.

Assistant Site Managers graduating with NVQ Level 3 in Construction Site Supervision,
pictured with Construction Director Shaun Sumner (top right).



24 Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review  

Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review

Risks
Risk

Weakness in the
general housing
market

Adverse impact of
regulatory changes

Failure to attract
and retain staff

Inability to secure
planning on a timely
basis

Inability to procure
appropriate land

Key supplier or 
subcontractor
failure

Health & Safety /
Environmental

Failure to respond
to product changes
in the housing
market

Fraud/Uninsured
losses

Description

The nature of the conditions
within the UK housing market
is fundamental to Redrow’s
business performance

The housing market is the
focus of significant regulatory
change in the key areas of
planning and the environment
and this may affect the cost or
marketability of new homes

The loss of key staff and/or
our failure to attract high
quality employees will inhibit
Redrow’s ability to achieve its
business objectives

The inability to obtain detailed
planning consents on key sites
may adversely impact upon
anticipated production

The inability to procure
appropriate land will inhibit the
Group’s future financial
performance

The failure of a key supplier or
subcontractor to perform could
disrupt Redrow’s ability to
deliver homes on programme

A significant Health & Safety or
environmental incident or
general deterioration in
standards could put people
and/or the environment at risk
as well as damaging Redrow’s
reputation

The failure to design and build
a desirable product for our
customers could lead to
relative underperformance in
our business

A significant fraud or uninsured
loss could damage the
financial performance of the
business

Mitigation

- Regional spread of operations diversifies risks to local markets
- Broad product range
- Close monitoring of, and management response to, lead indicators

of the housing market

- Redrow is a member of the Home Builders’ Federation through which
it works to engage constructively with Government

- In-house Product Development Team focused upon anticipating
regulatory changes and devising appropriate solutions

- Market cost of land should adjust to reflect impact of regulatory
changes

- Remuneration packages are benchmarked at local and national
levels to ensure that they are competitive

- In-house training centre provides a central focus for training
activities across all disciplines

- Structured management training programmes

- Strong and knowledgeable land, planning and technical teams
- Broad spread of developments going through the planning system at

any one time
- Well prepared, high quality planning submissions which address

local concerns and demonstrate good design

- Each Redrow region has a Planning Director and each Redrow 
company a dedicated land team actively pursuing land opportunities

- A focus on ‘added value’ and forward land provides the opportunity
to acquire land with margins higher than that in the current land
market

- Use of suppliers and subcontractors with strong track record and
reputation

- Close monitoring of supplier and subcontractor performance through
- six monthly assessment process

- Dedicated Health & Safety team operates across the Group to
ensure appropriate standards are applied with regular on site
inspections and audits 

- Group has established an Environmental Management System and
has introduced a site Environmental audit process

- All staff receive appropriate training through our in house programme

- Product Development Team undertakes regular market reviews and
independent market research

- The product mix on new sites is extensively considered by local
management and reviewed by Executive Directors

- Design is an integral element of our business with Directors of
Design in our three regions and Centres of Design Excellence being
established

- Systems, policies and procedures designed to segregate duties and
minimise opportunity for fraud

- Regular management reporting and challenge
- Internal Audit reviews
- Regular review of insurance programme

 



Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review     25

Redrow has a number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) which it targets and monitors in order to generate value for shareholders
and to continuously improve business performance. These KPIs can broadly be categorised as:

1.  Financial - how we monitor our financial success
2.  Resources - how we monitor our success with our resources in the key areas of land, product and people
3.  Customers - how we monitor our customer feedback

Earnings per
Share (EPS)

Return on
Capital
Employed
(ROCE)

Operating
margin

Forward
Sales

52.9p
(basic)

22.0%

17.2%

2,018

52.9p
(basic)

19.4%

17.2%

2,148

- Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period

- Operating profit, adjusted for joint
ventures, as a percentage of the average
of opening and closing capital employed

- Operating profit as a percentage of
turnover

- The number of homes reserved or
exchanged at the end of the period that
are due to legally complete in the future

Redrow regards growth in
Earnings per Share as an
important objective for our
shareholders

We monitor how effectively we
use our capital base with the
objective of delivering ROCE in
excess of our comparable cost
of capital

We regard this as an important
measure of the quality of our
financial returns

The level of forward sales
provides a measure of the
activity in future periods that is
pre-sold

1. Financial

3. Customers

2. Resources

Land

Product

People

16,750

4,250

24,700

0.40

21.3%

9

17,700

3,000

24,400

0.32

24.0%

6

- The number of plots owned with a
planning consent

- The number of plots controlled under
contract generally awaiting the grant of a
satisfactory planning consent

- The forward land bank is the sum of plots
controlled, generally under option, being
promoted through the planning system

- The average number of reportable items
per NHBC inspection

- Number of staff leaving through
resignation or dismissal as a proportion
of total staff

- A measurement of the accident potential
rate identified by Redrow’s Health &
Safety team across the Group on
inspecting sites

The landbank is the foundation
for our future business
performance

We aim to build our homes well
and therefore monitor
construction quality

Redrow looks to be regarded as
an employer of choice in the
industry and therefore we
monitor our staff turnover

We take our responsibility for
Health and Safety very seriously
and therefore monitor potential
and actual incidents

Customers 75%

80%

79%

83%

- The percentage of customers who are
satisfied with their overall purchase
experience including the quality of their
home

- The percentage of customers who would
recommend Redrow to a friend

We aim to provide our customers
with a home they are proud of
and to deliver improving levels of
customer service that enhance
our reputation in the
marketplace

KPI 20062007Measured asWhy it’s a KPI for Redrow

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
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Income Statement
Turnover in the year totalled £795.7m (2006: £770.1m), a 3.3%
increase on prior year levels. This reflected a strong performance
by our Mixed Use and Regeneration activities. Homes turnover
was £757.0m (2006: £765.5m) reflecting a reduction in average
selling price compared to the previous year as a result of changes
in the mix of properties with an increased proportion of our
affordable Debut homes.

Operating profit in the year was £136.6m (2006: £132.8m), an
increase of £3.8m on the previous year with the Group’s operating
margin unchanged at 17.2%. Homes delivered an operating profit
of £129.7m (2006: £133.8m), a 3.1% reduction on the previous
year with operating margins declining slightly, in line with our
expectations at 17.1% (2006: 17.5%). 

Mixed Use and Regeneration performed strongly generating an
operating profit, including its share of joint ventures, of £6.6m in
the year, compared to £0.7m in the prior year. This reflected
increased levels of activity across our mixed use developments and
the commencement of returns from our first regeneration
development at Barking.

The Group’s net financing costs in the year totalled £15.3m 
(2006: £11.5m) which were covered 8.9 times by operating profits.
Underlying bank interest costs were £13.2m, an increase of £4.6m
on the previous year reflecting higher interest rates during the year
and an increased average debt level used to finance our
investment in land for future development. Average debt in the
year ended June 2007 was approximately £230m (2006: c.£170m).
We anticipate an increase in the interest charge in 2007/08
principally as a consequence of higher cost of borrowing.

In accordance with IAS 39, deferred payments arising from land
creditors are held at discounted present value, recognising a
financing element on the deferred settlement terms. 

The value of the discount is expensed through net financing costs
and amounted to £2.8m in the year (2006: £3.0m).

Our joint ventures, Framing Solutions and Waterford Park,
delivered a combined loss of £0.8m attributable to Redrow after
interest and tax (2006: £0.8m). 

The Group’s effective tax rate was 30.0% (2006: 30.2%) during
the year. It is anticipated that the effective tax rate in 2007/08 will
be approximately 29.5%, benefiting from the reduction in the rate
of UK corporation tax from 30.0% to 28.0% from April 2008.

Balance sheet
The Group’s capital employed increased to £755.4m 
(2006: £643.6m) and reflected the increased investment made
into land over the 12 months ended June 2007.

Total land held for development increased to £641.4m 
(2006: £523.0m) with Homes land representing £634.0m 
(2006: £522.5m) of this figure, an increase of £111.5m on the
prior year.

When appropriate we will seek to purchase land on deferred terms
and in these cases, the vendor may retain a legal charge over the
land to which the transaction related or be provided with a
guarantee to support future payments. The overall level of land
creditors at £124.2m increased by £45.9m compared to the
previous year (2006: £78.3m) and funded 19.4% of our investment
in land as compared with 15.0% in 2006. 

Work in progress amounted to £347.3m at the end of June 2007
(2006: £326.6m), net of cash on account. The increased level of
work in progress reflected a higher level of investment into our
Signature and Debut developments as well as into Mixed Use 
& Regeneration. Work in progress on our ‘In the City’ schemes
reduced by £12.8m.

Part exchange is a tool used to a limited extent as part of our
incentive package. It is generally used for higher value properties
or stock plots and at the end of June 2007, we only owned 
55 properties with a value of £9.8m (2006: £6.6m) included in
work in progress.

Net assets per share increased by 12.3% to 361.5p (2006: 322.0p).

Financial review
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Cash flow
Cash generated from operations was £30.5m (2006: £44.5m) and
reflected the significant increase in inventories of £139.1m 
(2006: £88.6m) as a result of the investment made during the year
into the land bank.

Net debt increased by £47.8m to £177.6m (2006: £129.8m).

Treasury management
The Group has funded its increased investment in land and work
in progress in 2007 through a combination of retained profits,
bank financing and land creditors. Redrow has a policy of funding
itself with an appropriate mix of debt and equity and with balance
sheet gearing at June 2007 of 30.7% (2006: 25.3%) and interest
cover of 8.9 times (2006: 11.5 times) the Group retains the
capacity for further investment.

Treasury management is conducted centrally with the focus being
upon liquidity and interest rate risks. Since Redrow operates
wholly within the UK and almost exclusively with a sterling
denominated supplier base, direct foreign exchange exposure is not
regarded as a significant area of risk. 

Liquidity risks are managed through the regular review of cash
forecasts and by maintaining adequate committed banking
facilities to ensure appropriate headroom. As at June 2007,
Redrow had committed funding of £400m together with further
uncommitted bank facilities totalling £40m which are used in the
process of daily cash management. Day to day cash management is
achieved by each company operating its own bank account with
bank accounts managed at a Group level under a set off
arrangement.

Within the Board’s interest rate risk management framework,
interest rates and cash flow forecasts are regularly monitored to
ensure that the level of hedging to mitigate risks remains
appropriate. The policy prohibits any trading in derivative
financial instruments and requires any hedging to be undertaken
using simple risk management products such as interest rate swaps.

The notional level of debt protected by interest rate swaps as at
June 2007 was £100.0m (2006: £62.5m). These swaps had an
average remaining life of 1.6 years at a fixed rate of 5.1% before
borrowing margins are added.  

Pensions
Following the results of the triennial valuation of the defined
benefits section of the Redrow Staff Pension Scheme undertaken
as at 30 June 2005, the Company had agreed with the Trustees to
make special contributions totalling £11.0m towards the past
service deficit of £11.5m. The balance of this contribution, being
£8.0m, was paid in July 2006. The defined benefit section of the
pension scheme is now closed to new entrants but as a
consequence of the scheme’s investment performance, together

with favourable movements in bond yields over the last twelve
months, the Group accounts record the scheme having a pre tax
surplus of £6.1m at the end of June 2007. The Company, together
with the Trustees, continues to monitor closely both the financial
position of the defined benefit section and the underlying actuarial
assumptions, particularly as regards mortality and increasing life
expectancy.

Earnings per share and dividends
Basic earnings per share were 52.9p, unchanged on the previous
year. Diluted earnings per share were 52.8p (2006: 52.7p).  
In accordance with the Board’s previously stated commitment and
subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting on 
7 November 2007, a final dividend of 7.8 pence per share will be
paid on 16 November 2007. This represents an increase in the full
year dividend of 20% to 15.6 pence (2006:13.0 pence).

Dividend per share/Dividend cover

03

20

15

10

5

0
04 05 06 07

D
iv

id
en

d 
pe

r 
sh

ar
e 

(p
en

ce
)

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
iv

id
en

d 
co

ve
r 

(t
im

es
)

•
•

•
••

Dividend per share (pence)

• Dividend cover (times)



28 Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review  

Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review

In our Homes operations we have moved into the new financial
year with a stronger forward sales position and we are on
programme to increase our outlets in the coming months as we
move through the Autumn selling season. We also anticipate
additional social housing legal completions in 2007/08. We have
97.5% of our anticipated output for the current year on sites with
implementable planning consent which provides us with the
capacity to grow our volumes.

The key factor in the outcome for 2007/08 will be the strength of
demand in the housing markets in which we operate. It is always
difficult to assess the housing market based on activity in the
weaker selling months of July and August. However, the effect of
the succession of base rate rises since August 2006, coupled with
remaining uncertainties over interest rates and the debt markets,
appear to be influencing consumer confidence and the housing
markets as we move into the Autumn selling season. We will
closely monitor lead indicators and retain a careful balance
between selling prices and rate of sale to optimise returns from our
land bank.

In conjunction with this sales strategy we will exercise robust
management of both our build cost and our overheads. 
However, as we have previously indicated, land acquired in recent
years which in general has not benefited from inflation in the
selling prices of new homes, will influence margins over the next
twelve months as compared with their current level.

We have some excellent developments on stream in our mixed use
portfolio and will complete Phase 1 of Barking with the legal
completion of the remaining 151 apartments in 2007/08. We will
continue to invest in the future of Redrow Regeneration through
pre-development expenditure but given the very strong
performance in 2006/07 do not, at this stage, anticipate the same
strength of contribution in the new financial year from our Mixed
Use and Regeneration activities.

The spotlight has been increasingly on our industry in recent years
in terms of the number, affordability and sustainability of new
homes. There have been numerous changes to the planning
system aimed at making it more efficient and new challenges set as
regards addressing the issues of climate change. We have concerns
whether the changes to the planning system will deliver benefits
in terms of the speed of delivery of implementable planning
consents. We support the objective to improve the sustainability
of new homes and Redrow has, alongside its peer group and
stakeholders from other sectors, signed the 2016 Zero Carbon
Commitment.

In July of this year the Government published a Green Paper that
set out its agenda for the housing sector with the over arching
objective of delivering 3 million new homes by 2020 with
increased levels of sustainability. We believe the key issue is
whether the proposals will resolve the conflict between the
Government’s agenda to increase the delivery of new homes and
some Local Authorities’ resistance to new development.

The essential elements in our strategy continue to be in our long
term approach to land acquisition and the capacity in our
company structure to deliver growth in output. We are using our
skills in mixed use development to enable us to unlock residential
opportunities and continue to invest in Redrow Regeneration as 
a further source of long term land yielding a profit stream in 
the future.

The focus on design to optimise value is taking on an increasing
importance in our business, especially in conjunction with our
product development investment to address the requirements in
respect of sustainability. This can make us more competitive in the
land market, assist in delivering planning consents more
effectively and secure increased value for Redrow and our
customers.

The fundamentals for our industry in the medium and long term
remain positive and our land bank, product and experienced
management teams will enable us to address the challenges and
take advantage of the opportunities in our marketplace for the
benefit of shareholders in the coming years.

Neil Fitzsimmons David Arnold
Chief Executive Group Finance Director

Business Outlook



Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review     29

Signature product at Ley Vale, Frome, Somerset - a development recognised by CABE for the quality of its urban design.

Signature product at Garncroft Wynd, Glenboig, North Lanarkshire.
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Two key themes underpin Redrow’s management of Corporate Social
Responsibility: a drive for continuous improvement; and ensuring effective
communication with key stakeholders.

Corporate social responsibility review

Continuous Improvement
Continuous improvement is a key element of Redrow’s strategy
throughout our business. This year has seen a focus on
strengthening and improving organisational structures and
procedures to meet the objectives set out in our Sustainability
Policy and ensuring that Redrow plays its part in combating the
potential impact of climate change.

During the year a dedicated Sustainability Manager was appointed
to complement and advance the work already undertaken by the
Product Development Department. As a result of this new post,
the Company is in a better position to ensure that sustainability
issues are more fully addressed throughout all parts of the business.

Policy Progress
Our sustainability policy addresses six key performance areas.

1) Land
“Maximising land use and regeneration and encouraging biodiversity”

76% (75%: 2006) of legal completions in 2007 were on brownfield
land.

2007 saw Redrow Regeneration plc deliver its first legal
completions and the Barking Lifelong Learning Centre. This
flagship scheme is transforming Barking Town Square, combining
residential, office, retail and leisure buildings with quality open
space.

Our “Vision” scheme at Devonport, being undertaken with
English Partnerships, involves the regeneration of the former
Ministry of Defence stores enclave, to deliver a sustainable, 
mixed use community to BRE EcoHomes Excellent standard. 
This major regeneration project will deliver 463 new homes and
100,000 square feet of commercial space.

Our Stamford Brook development, in partnership with the
National Trust, has been recognised at the annual North West in
Bloom ceremony where it received the Royal Horticultural
Society’s Biodiversity Award.

2) Design
“Focusing on design excellence, sustainability and performance”

2007 has seen the continued development of our Design Centre 
of Excellence at Northampton. Combined with this we have
introduced a new Urban Design Training Programme developed in
conjunction with CABE and Oxford Brookes University.

Redrow’s Jupiter development in Birmingham was named as one 
of the best developments in CABE’s third and final regional 
mid-market housing design audit covering the East and West
Midlands and the South West. The development scored 80% and
was one of only two out of 100 developments assessed to be
deemed “very good”.

Energy efficiency is also a key part of our design philosophy. This
is currently measured using the Government’s recommended
system for energy ratings for dwellings, the Standard Assessment
Procedure (SAP). Under the latest version, SAP 2005, dwellings
are rated from zero to 100, where a rating of zero is very poor and
100 is very good.

The average rating for homes built in the year, across the full
spectrum of our product range, excluding Debut, was 75. Our
innovative and energy conscious, first time buyer range, Debut
averages 82. For comparison, the average SAP in England is 51 for
Local Authority rented homes and 58 for homes in the private
sector. 

Brian Duckworth Senior Non-Executive Director
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3) Procurement
“Enhancing the efficiency and ethics of procurement through partnering”

Redrow takes pride in that it is the only homebuilder represented
in the membership of WWF UK-Forest Trade Network 
(UK-FTN), working with the WWF to decrease the use of timber
from unknown sources and increase the use of timber from known,
legal and certified sources.

Information relating to the environmental performance of all of
our materials and product suppliers has been obtained, to ensure
they are meeting their environmental obligations and can conform
to ours. Additionally, every six months we carry out a
comprehensive performance review of our suppliers, which
includes many aspects of performance, including the amount of
packaging used in delivering materials to site.

4) Construction
“Achieving high quality construction, minimising risks to the
environment and maintaining high levels of Health and Safety”

This year we have undertaken our first calculation of direct carbon
emissions arising from our Group wide activities. The calculation
covers electricity and gas usage at sites and offices, together with
fuel consumption for all plant and vehicles owned or controlled by
Redrow. This exercise will be repeated annually and allows us to
set year on year target reductions.

Our Environmental Management System is based around the
themes of preventing pollution, ensuring legal compliance,
reducing resource use and minimising waste. This year we have
introduced a robust internal auditing system for all sites, where
these issues are examined on a regular and continuous basis and

the performance of each of our subsidiary companies is reported
monthly to the Main Board. Details of the progress being made in
this area is also presented to the Environmental Corporate
Responsibility Committee.

Our positive focus on Health and Safety across our operations has
once again been recognised by ROSPA, with a Gold Award being
achieved for the second consecutive year. We will continue to
work hard in the coming year to improve on all aspects of
workplace Health and Safety. You will find more information
about our Health and Safety performance at www.redrow.co.uk in
our Health and Safety Annual Report.

5) Marketing
“Encouraging our customers to recognise the benefits delivered through
sustainable development”

The lessons learned from our pioneering Debut product are now
being extended to our Signature product, where our customers can
now choose from a range of Green Options. These include solar
water heating, measures to reduce water consumption inside the
home, rainwater harvesting, more sophisticated temperature and
lighting controls to reduce energy consumption and composting
facilities.

Redrow believes that homebuilders have a key role to play in
positively influencing our customers’ attitudes towards more
environmentally friendly living. To assist our customers we have
developed a Home User Guide highlighting the most efficient
ways to use the heating system installed in their homes, tips on
environmental best practice and information regarding the local
community and environment, such as the location of nearby
recycling centres.

An “Introduction to Redrow” course being delivered by training@redrow at its dedicated centre at Tamworth.



32 Corporate social responsibility review  

Corporate social responsibility review

Children from CHICKS (Country Holidays for Inner City Kids)
enjoying a respite break funded by the Redrow Foundation.

6) Customer Service
“Providing high standards of customer service”

Our customer satisfaction level for our core new home range has
increased to 78% (76%: 2006) and our recommendation level is
82% (82: 2006). For Debut, our innovative, first time buyer home
range, satisfaction is 94% and our recommendation level is 88%.

We are currently undertaking a comprehensive review of our
customer service to ensure continuing improvement in our
customers’ experience, through all stages of the purchasing process.

Communication
Redrow recognises that CSR means engagement with key
stakeholders to enable progressive performance improvement and
to identify and address social, environmental and ethical risks
associated with our business. We have signed up to the
NextGeneration Housebuilders Benchmarking Club, with the
primary aims of: benchmarking our sustainability performance;
ensuring we meet best practice; and participating in the
networking opportunities that membership provides. 
Throughout the year, we have worked to reinforce our
relationships with all our key stakeholders.

Customers
Redrow has long recognised the value of affordable, sustainable
homes for its customers, as exemplified by our Debut product. 
Five sites have now secured BRE EcoHomes “excellent” rating at
St David’s Park, Flintshire; Buckshaw Village, Chorley; Castle
Vale in Birmingham; Pavilion Lock, Stoke on Trent and Willans
Green in Rugby. 

Debut has also added to its impressive string of industry awards
with the Welsh Business in the Community (BITC) “Big Tick”
award for innovation, followed by “highly commended” runner-up
in the national BITC awards.

Local Communities
In addition to striving to create sustainable, mixed communities,
Redrow is concerned to ensure that full consideration is given to
integration of our developments into the existing community.

We are proud of our efforts to positively engage with communities
at an early stage in the planning process to enable evolution of
designs and solutions that meet the needs of both the existing and
new communities.

At our “Vision” scheme in Devonport, a full time Community
Liaison Officer has been employed directly by Redrow to act as a
conduit between Redrow and the surrounding community. 
The liaison officer’s role has been to keep the local community
informed and form strong relationships with numerous
stakeholders including local schools and community groups - their
initial input helped to shape the way in which the site is being
developed.

Redrow’s belief that we have a wider role to play in the
community is supported by the Redrow Foundation. This is an
independent trust, launched in March 2006, and is particularly
aimed at providing accommodation and related assistance,
including respite care, for children in need, the elderly, the sick or
infirm. Redrow donated £241,000 to the Foundation in the year
ended June 2007.

Stockport Cerebal Palsy Society received a donation from the
Redrow Foundation for the construction of a purpose built

conservatory at Cheddle Lodge, Stockport.
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Investors
It is increasingly important for our investors, that Redrow takes
proper account of the impact of the business on the environment
across the Group as a whole and this year as well as undertaking
our first calculation of direct carbon emissions we have also taken
steps to reduce our carbon footprint. We have recently negotiated
a contract with Ecotricity for the supply of 100% renewable
electricity to each of our principle Homes offices. The transition
to this supply is expected to be completed shortly.

Employees
As part of Redrow’s continual investment in the training and
development of our employees, delivered through our dedicated
training centre at Tamworth, we are currently developing a
focused training programme for CSR related issues. Courses being
developed encompass general environmental awareness, advice
concerning the recently introduced Code for Sustainable Homes
and guidance about environmental management on site. These
courses are being designed to complement a range of existing
programmes, which include Urban Design, Health and Safety and
staff development.

To reinforce Redrow’s commitment to environmental awareness,
each of our principle offices has set up a “Green Team” led by a
“Champion” to identify opportunities to reduce the impact of our
business on the environment, to suggest appropriate improvement
measures and to action approved responses. This activity is being
co-ordinated overall by our Sustainability Manager.

Redrow also recognises the importance of work-life balance for its
employees and has recently introduced a package which includes
the reduction of the working week by one hour and provision in
the near future of a Childcare Voucher scheme.

Suppliers and Subcontractors 
Redrow seeks to deal with suppliers and subcontractors able to
demonstrate their commitment to the environment through their
own codes of practice. A partnering approach is adopted that
clearly sets out the expectations from all parties and covers issues
such as sourcing of materials, transportation and delivery,
packaging, Health and Safety, workforce competency and training
and welfare as well as payment and pricing terms.

All subcontractors receive a copy of our Customer Service
Agreement and our Supplier Service Agreement with which they
agree to comply as part of the basis of the order. In so doing, they
also agree to work in accordance with our Environmental Policies
and Procedures and within the conditions of Redrow’s membership
of the WWF UK-FTN, as well as meeting our requirements for a
customer focused, professional service. 

Summary
The year has seen Redrow build upon the policies which underpin
our commitment to deliver against our CSR responsibilities and to
reduce the impact of our business on the environment. We have
the right policies, the right people and the flexibility to ensure
that we continue to deliver within our fast changing and
challenging business environment, into the future.

You will find more information about our Corporate Social
Responsibility policies and practices on our website in the form of
a comprehensive report. A CD is also available on request.

Brian Duckworth
Chairman Environmental Corporate Responsibility Committee

Community Liaison

There has been a full time Community Liaison Officer at

Vision since the start of Redrow’s major regeneration project

in Devonport. This role has been important in bridging the gap

between the community and the developers, ensuring that

local views are heard and the community at large is engaged

in what is happening on the development.

The Community Liaison Officer has worked with all sectors

and age groups of the local population, including school

children, local business and community groups; indeed

anyone who is interested in the development and wishes to

be involved.

Anne Tillet, Community Liaison Officer, presents a donation from

Redrow to the Friends of Devonport Park.
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Redrow’s Executive Team has over 130 years experience in the housebuilding
and development sectors. The expertise and skill set at our disposal provides
Redrow with the ideal balance for managing the business in both the short
and longer terms. 
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1 Alan Bowkett, 56

Non-Executive Chairman

Alan Bowkett joined the Redrow Board as Non-Executive

Chairman on 5 July 2007. Currently Chairman of aerospace

and safety products group Seton House (formerly Britax

International) and previously Chairman of UK engineering

group Doncasters. He is also a former Chief Executive of

building products business Boulton and Paul plc and

Berisford plc. Until 2006, Alan had been a Non-Executive

Director of UK brewing company Greene King for 13 years.

2 Neil Fitzsimmons, 48

Chief Executive

Joined Redrow in 1997 and was appointed to the Board as

Group Finance Director a year later, becoming Group

Managing Director in September 2003. A chartered

accountant by profession, Neil has worked in the construction

and housebuilding sectors since 1986 and was appointed

Chief Executive of Redrow plc on 1 August 2005.

3 David Arnold, 41

Group Finance Director

A Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management

Accountants and the Association of Corporate Treasurers,

David Arnold was appointed to the Board as Group Finance

Director in September 2003. He joined Redrow in 2002

having previously held senior finance and treasury roles with

Tarmac Plc and Six Continents plc. 

4 Graham Cope, 43

Company Secretary

Joined Redrow as Head of Legal in November 2002 and

appointed Company Secretary two months later, Graham has

18 years’ experience in the housebuilding sector, either

working in-house or for clients in private practice. He qualified

as a Solicitor in 1989 and is a member of the Law Society.

5 David Campbell-Kelly, 49

Chairman - Northern Region

David has worked in the housebuilding sector for 25 years

joining Redrow in 1994, holding positions as Financial

Director and Managing Director of the Midlands regional

housing company, before becoming Regional Chairman for the

Midlands operation in 2006, and then Regional Chairman of

our Northern operation from 1 July 2007.

6 John Tutte, 51

Chairman - Southern Region and Redrow Regeneration

John Tutte joined the Board of Redrow in July 2002. 

He qualified in civil engineering and has amassed more than

30 years’ experience within the housebuilding industry,

having previously worked as Chief Executive of Wilson

Connolly plc.

7 Colin Lewis, 50

Chairman - Western Region

Appointed to the Board of Redrow in 2001, Colin is a lawyer

by profession. He joined Redrow in 1991 as a Company

Solicitor and became Legal Director and a Company

Secretary, before becoming Managing Director for Redrow in

the South West and South Wales. Colin has accumulated

over 25 years of experience in the property industry.

8 Brian Duckworth OBE, 58

Senior Non-Executive Director

Chairman - Environmental Corporate Responsibility Committee

Brian Duckworth joined the Board of Redrow in 2002. He was

Managing Director of Severn Trent Water until August 2004.

Brian is a Fellow of the Association of Certified Accountants

and of the Chartered Institution of Water and Environmental

Management. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Avon

Rubber plc, Novera Energy plc and White Young Green plc.

9 Malcolm King, 62

Non-Executive Director

Chairman - Remuneration Committee

Malcolm joined the Redrow Board in January 2004. A Fellow

of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and a Master of

Business Administration, he was Senior Partner of UK

commercial property consultants, King Sturge, between 1987

and 2005 and held the position of international Chairman

until 30 April 2006. In all, Malcolm has 44 years’ experience

in the property sector.

10 Bob Bennett, 60

Non-Executive Director

Chairman - Audit Committee

Appointed to the Redrow Board in 2007. Bob is a Fellow of

the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Associate of the

Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and Member

of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants. 

He was Finance Director of Northern Rock plc from 1993 to

2007. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Expro

International Group plc and Greggs plc.

11 Denise Jagger, 49

Non-Executive Director

Denise joined the Redrow Board in January 2007. She has

been a partner of law firm Eversheds LLP since 2004, and

was previously Company Secretary and General Counsel of

Asda Wal-Mart, where she spent 11 years. Denise also holds 

non-executive directorships at SCS Upholstery plc, the

LawWorks charity and York Museums Trust.
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Governance Framework
The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and to continuing to develop its approach to
corporate governance and risk management.

Under the requirements of the Listing Rules of the FSA, the
Company sets out details below of how it has applied the
principles of good governance set out in Section 1 of the
Combined Code published in July 2003 (“the Code”).

The Directors have considered the contents and requirements of
the Code and consider that throughout the year ended 30 June
2007 the Company has been substantially compliant. Within this
section on corporate governance, the Directors have specifically
identified those provisions with which the Company does not
comply with the Code together with the reasons behind this being
the composition of the Board and the individual performance
appraisal of the Non-Executive Directors whilst there was no
permanent Chairman in place.

The Board
Composition of the Board
As at 10 September 2007, the Board comprised a Non-Executive
Chairman, five Executive Directors and five Non-Executive
Directors, four of whom are considered to be independent. 
A summary of the composition of the Board and its committees
during the year is set out in Table 1. From 1 October 2007, the
Board will comprise a Non-Executive Chairman, four Executive
Directors and four independent Non-Executive Directors and will
comply with the Code.

There is a clear division of responsibilities at the head of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board
and this responsibility is clearly established, set out in writing and
agreed by the Board. The Chief Executive leads the business and is
responsible for managing it within the authorities delegated to him
by the Board.

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Board and its
Committees and is a member of the Group Senior Management
team; all Directors have access to his advice and services. 

Table 1 - List of Directors holding office during 2006/07

Number Environmental
Position of years Independent Audit Corporate Nomination Remuneration

on board Committee Responsibility Committee Committee
Committee

David Arnold Group Finance Director 4 No No No No No

Bob Bennett Non-Executive Director - Yes Chairman1 No Yes Yes

Alan Bowkett Non-Executive Chairman - No2 No No Chairman5 No

Brian Duckworth Senior Non-Executive
Director 5 Yes3 Yes Chairman Yes Yes

Neil Fitzsimmons Chief Executive 9 No No Yes No No

Barry Harvey Chairman - Northern Region
resigned 29 Jun 07 9 No No No No No

Denise Jagger Non-Executive Director - Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Robert Jones Non-Executive Chairman
resigned 30 Mar 07 10 No2 No Yes Yes5 No

Malcolm King Non-Executive Director 3 Yes Yes No Yes Chairman

Colin Lewis Chairman - Western Region 6 No No No No No

Jim Martin Non-Executive Director
to resign 11 Sep 07 10 No2 No1 No No5 No4

Paul Pedley Deputy Executive Chairman
to resign 30 Sep 07 22 No No No No No

John Tutte Chairman - Southern Region 5 No No No No No

1 Jim Martin was Chairman of the Audit Committee until his resignation from the Committee on 30 March 2007, when he was
succeeded on an interim basis as Chairman by Brian Duckworth. Bob Bennett was appointed as Chairman of the Audit
Committee on 1 July 2007.

2 Robert Jones was Non-Executive Chairman until his resignation due to ill health on 30 March 2007. He was succeeded by Jim
Martin as Interim Non-Executive Chairman until the appointment of Alan Bowkett on 5 July 2007. Under the Code the Chairman
is not regarded as independent once appointed.

3 Brian Duckworth succeeded Jim Martin as Senior Non-Executive Director on 30 March 2007.

4 Jim Martin resigned from the Remuneration Committee on his appointment as Interim Non-Executive Chairman on 30 March
2007.

5 Robert Jones was Chairman of the Nomination Committee until his resignation on 30 March 2007. He was succeeded by Jim
Martin as Chairman of the Nomination Committee and was subsequently succeeded as Chairman of the Committee by Alan
Bowkett on 1 August 2007. Jim will resign from the Nomination Committee on 11 September 2007.
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The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a
matter for the Board as a whole. In certain circumstances, Board
Committees and individual Directors may wish to take
independent professional advice in connection with their
responsibilities and duties and, in this regard, the Company will
meet the reasonable costs and expenses incurred.

During the year the Company appointed Denise Jagger and Bob
Bennett as Non-Executive Directors on 17 January 2007 and 
1 May 2007 respectively. Jim Martin became acting 
Non-Executive Chairman following the resignation of Robert
Jones and Brian Duckworth replaced Jim Martin as Senior 
Non-Executive Director.

On 29 June 2007, Barry Harvey resigned as an Executive Director.

On 5 July 2007, Alan Bowkett was appointed Non-Executive
Chairman. 

On 11 September 2007, Jim Martin will resign as a Non-Executive
Director.

Paul Pedley will resign with effect from 30 September 2007.

Board responsibilities and processes
The Board meets regularly and frequently, no less than ten times
per annum including a meeting solely to review strategy and
maintains a close dialogue as appropriate between meetings. 
Board meetings are held at Head Office and periodically at
subsidiary offices when visits are made to a selection of
developments accompanied by the local management team. 
Board papers are distributed in advance of the meetings to allow
adequate time for review and preparation and include key
strategic, operational and financial information. Attendance by
individual directors at Board and Committee meetings held during
the year ended 30 June 2007 is set out in Table 2.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved specifically
for its decision. The matters reserved include:

1. Approval of Redrow’s long term objectives and strategy;

2. Approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, preliminary
and interim financial statements, trading updates and the
recommendation of dividends;

3. Approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

4. Any changes relating to capital structure;

5. Approval of treasury policies;

6. Ensuring the maintenance of a sound system of internal
control and risk management;

7. Approval of corporate acquisitions or disposals, significant
land purchases or contracts;

8. Changes to the size, structure and composition of the Board;

9. Approval of significant policies, including Redrow’s Health
and Safety policy; and

10. Review of overall corporate governance arrangements.

Details of internal control and risk management processes are
included in the Audit Committee report on pages 39 to 41.

Board balance and independence
The Board considers that it is of a size and has a balance of skills,
knowledge and experience that is appropriate for its business. 
The combination within the Executive team of the Chief
Executive and Group Finance Director together with the local
operational knowledge and experience provided by those Regional
Chairmen on the Main Board provides the Board with an
appropriate view of the detail of the business. The Non-Executive
directors bring a depth of experience and understanding from
outside the Group and this experience has been complemented
during the year by the appointment of Denise Jagger and 
Bob Bennett.

Details of the Directors’ respective experience is set out in their
profiles on pages 34 to 35.

Table 2 - Attendance record of Directors at meetings during the year ended 30 June 2007

Audit Remuneration Nomination Environmental
Board Committee Committee Committee Corporate 

Responsibility 
Committee

Total number of meetings in the year ended 30 June 2007 12 4 4 6 2

Executive Directors
David Arnold 12/12 - - - - 
Neil Fitzsimmons 12/12 - - - 2/2
Barry Harvey 12/12 - - - - 
Colin Lewis 11/12 - - - - 
Paul Pedley 10/12 - - - - 
John Tutte 12/12 - - - - 

Non-Executive Directors
Bob Bennett 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1 - 
Brian Duckworth 11/12 4/4 4/4 1/1 2/2
Denise Jagger 5/6 0/1 1/2 2/3 1/1
Robert Jones 8/8 - - 3/4 1/1
Malcolm King 11/12 4/4 4/4 5/6 - 
Jim Martin 11/12 3/3 3/3 6/6 - 
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Under the Code, at least half the Board, excluding the Chairman,
should comprise independent Non-Executive Directors. Since the
publication of the Code, the Board has continued to keep this
matter under review and considered a variety of changes that
would lead to compliance.  Following the resignations of Paul
Pedley and Jim Martin, the Board will fully comply with this
provision. Table 1 on page 36 provides a summary of the
Company’s assessment of the independence of the Directors.

Appointments and re-elections to the Board
The Board has a Nomination Committee whose terms of 
reference include making recommendations to the Board on 
the appointment of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
The Nomination Committee report can be found on page 39.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to re-election at their first Annual General Meeting after
appointment. Subsequently, all Directors submit themselves for 
re-election at regular intervals of not more than three years. In
compliance with best practice, Non-Executive Directors submit
themselves for annual re-election if they have served more than
nine years since first election.

Professional development and performance evaluation
The Board recognises that a structured appraisal process and good
training are important requirements across the Group. The Board
receives regular presentations and briefings from those responsible
for key Group disciplines. In addition, the Board maintains close
relationships with local management teams.

All Directors undertake a comprehensive induction programme
following their first appointment. The programme for 
Non-Executive Directors is specifically designed to encompass 
the full breadth of the business and includes visits to operating
subsidiaries.

All Executive Directors have an annual appraisal conducted by
the Chief Executive at which performance against personal
objectives is reviewed, having received input from the Board
generally. The performance evaluation of the Non-Executive
Directors is also generally part of the annual appraisal process.
However, in the year to June 2007, this process was affected by the
illness and resignation of the then Chairman, Robert Jones and
the appointment of a new Chairman and two new independent
Non-Executive Directors. It is the intention of the Board to
conduct a review of the performance of individual Non-Executive
Directors at the earliest appropriate opportunity.

The Board undertakes a formal annual review of its own
effectiveness. For the year ended June 2007, this was undertaken
using a formal questionnaire completed by each Director and the
responses were considered collectively by the Board. As a result of
this review, the Board identified some minor improvements it
proposes to make regarding Board agendas, management
information and processes.

Directors’ remuneration
The Board has a Remuneration Committee whose terms of
reference include the review of Main Board remuneration policy
and agreement of the terms of employment and the granting of
bonuses, share options or share incentive plans relating to the

Group’s Senior Management. The Remuneration report can be
found on pages 42 to 49.

Relations with Shareholders
The Group announces its financial results half yearly and
immediately following their publication undertakes formal
presentations to equity analysts. These presentations are available
on the Company’s website. In addition, the Group published a
trading update early in January 2007 and July 2007 on the
financial periods just ended.

Following the results’ announcement, the Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director meet current or potential significant
shareholders. In the year ended June 2007, this encompassed visits
to London, Edinburgh, Frankfurt, the Netherlands and Dublin and
feedback from these meetings is independently collated and
disseminated to the Board. In 2007 as part of its investor relations
programme, the Board commissioned independent research into
the attitudes and opinions of a selection of equity analysts and
investors on Redrow. The Chairman also attends meetings with a
sample of major shareholders to ensure that contact is maintained
to understand any issues or concerns they may have.

The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director was available to
attend meetings at the request of shareholders should they have
had concerns which could not be resolved through normal
channels of communication with the Non-Executive Chairman,
the Chief Executive or the Group Finance Director. No such
concerns were brought to the attention of the Senior  
Non-Executive Director during the year ended 30 June 2007.

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) takes place at a venue close
to the Group’s Head Office. This represents an opportunity for
shareholders to table questions formally during the meeting and
informally afterwards to the Company’s Directors.

Formal notification of the AGM, through the Annual Report and
Accounts, is sent to shareholders at least 20 working days in
advance. It is Company policy to propose a separate resolution at
the AGM on each substantive issue including the opportunity to
approve the Remuneration report.

Redrow’s website, www.redrow.co.uk, gives access to current
financial and corporate information.

Institutional v. Private shareholders (% of shareholders)

1 Institutional shareholders = 25%

2 Private shareholders = 75%

Institutional v. Private shareholders (% of shares held)

1 Institutional shareholders = 96%

2 Private shareholders = 4%

1

1 2

2
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Nomination Committee report
The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, leading
the process for Board appointments and making recommendations
to the Board with regard to any changes The terms of reference of
the Committee are kept under regular review and are published on
the Group’s website.

The Committee was chaired by Robert Jones until his resignation
due to ill health on 30 March 2007, when he was succeeded on an
interim basis by Jim Martin. Alan Bowkett was appointed
Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 August 2007.

The Committee met six times during the year ended 30 June
2007.

The principal business of the Committee during the early months
of the financial year was to liaise with a leading firm of
headhunters that had been appointed to identify potential 
Non-Executive Directors and to consider their recommended
candidates. After a thorough review and interview process, the
Committee recommended to the Board the appointment of Denise
Jagger and Bob Bennett as Independent Non-Executive Directors.
They were formally appointed on 17 January 2007 and 1 May
2007 respectively.

Denise is a qualified solicitor who specialised in corporate finance
before joining Asda Group as part of its recovery team in the early
1990’s where, amongst other things, she had responsibility for
corporate social responsibility and risk management. Since leaving
Wal-Mart in 2004, Denise has been a partner at Eversheds, the
international law firm.

Bob is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales who served 14 years as Group Finance
Director of Northern Rock plc, the specialised lending and savings
bank, until his retirement from the Board in January 2007. Bob
has a wealth of experience and understanding of finance and the
dynamics of the UK housing market. 

In the second half of the financial year, the Committee appointed
a leading firm of headhunters to identify a field of candidates for
consideration as Non-Executive Chairman to succeed Jim Martin.
Jim was acting as Interim Non-Executive Chairman following the
illness and resignation of Robert Jones. The Committee
considered the qualities and skills required and the options
available and after a thorough review and interview process
recommended to the Board the appointment of Alan Bowkett.
Alan was appointed Non-Executive Chairman on 5 July 2007. 
Alan has extensive board experience across a range of industry
sectors at both executive and non-executive level. Over the course
of his career, his senior executive roles include Chief Executive of
Berisford plc, RHP Bearings Ltd and Boulton and Paul plc and
Chairman of Doncaster Group plc, an automotive company in
Belgium and a chemical company in the Netherlands. He is
currently Chairman of aerospace and safety products group, Seton
House and until 2006, Alan had been a Non-Executive Director
of UK brewing company Greene King for 13 years.

Audit Committee report 
The Audit Committee’s principal responsibilities lie in reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, overseeing the appointment and
work of the external Auditors and reviewing Redrow’s internal
control processes. The terms of reference of the Committee are
kept under regular review and are published on the Group’s
website.

Jim Martin resigned as Chairman of the Audit Committee on 
30 March 2007 following his appointment as Interim Chairman of
Redrow plc. Brian Duckworth assumed the chairmanship of the
Committee, on an interim basis, from that date until 1 July 2007.
On 1 July 2007, Bob Bennett was appointed as Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The chairmanship of the Committee during the year and the
chairmens’ relevant qualifications are outlined in Table 3.

The Board considers the Committee has the appropriate level of
expertise to fulfil its terms of reference.

Corporate Governance structure
Main Board

Operating businesses

• Chief Executive

• Group Finance Director

• Regional Chairmen

• Company Secretary

• Audit

• Environmental Corporate
Responsibility

• Nomination

• Remuneration

Executive Management TeamCommittees
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The Committee met on four occasions during the financial year
ended June 2007. The external Auditors attended each meeting
and the Committee regularly takes the opportunity to meet them
without any Executive Director being present.

The Committee receives regular updates and presentations on
changes to accounting standards and best practice in financial
reporting and corporate governance. In addition, individual
members are encouraged to attend external seminars and courses
on areas relevant to their membership of the Committee.

The Audit Committee addressed a wide variety of issues in its
meetings, including:

1. Reviews of the interim and full year results including the
Annual Report and Accounts;

2. Reviews of the results of the 2006 external audit including the
implementation of IFRS, the 2007 external audit plan and
associated fees;

3. A review of the independence and objectivity of the external
Auditors;

4. A review of the effectiveness of Redrow’s Internal Audit
function, its structure and strategy together with the approval
of its programme of work. In addition, Committee members
received regular updates on its activities;

5. A review of a comprehensive risk assessment exercise
undertaken across the Group with the assistance of KPMG;

6. A review of the land appraisal and acquisition processes; 

7. A review of the Group’s Whistleblowing policy; and

8. A review of Audit Committee effectiveness.

The Group has a widely publicised whistleblowing policy which
enables employees to raise concerns in confidence. The Audit
Committee has arranged to receive reports on all occasions when
such issues are raised under this policy. 

Auditor Independence
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) were appointed Auditors in
2003 having succeeded PricewaterhouseCoopers who were

appointed in 1987. The current audit partner was first appointed
in respect of the financial year ended June 2005.

The Audit Committee has an approved policy in respect of the
work of the external Auditors. The purpose of this policy is to
ensure that the Auditor’s objectivity and independence is
maintained by ensuring both that the nature of any non-audit
work undertaken and the level of fees paid does not compromise
the Auditor’s position. Appointments in respect of non-audit work
require the prior approval of the Audit Committee.

The main non-audit work undertaken on an ongoing basis relates
to advice provided to the Company by PwC in their capacity as
Scheme Actuary of the Redrow Staff Pension Scheme. In
addition, during the year, some costs were incurred in relation to 
a company acquisition that was not concluded; PwC undertook
work in connection with the preparation of draft circulars. 
Details of fees paid to PwC are given in note 2 to the financial
statements on page 61.

Internal Controls
The Board of Directors recognises its overall responsibility for the
Group’s system of internal control and for monitoring its
effectiveness. There is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks which has been in place
throughout the year and up to the date of this report. However, in
reviewing the effectiveness of internal control, such systems can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

In June 2007 the Board appointed an Assurance Director whose
primary remit is to review controls and to identify control
improvements throughout the organisation which reduce risk or
maximise opportunities. The Assurance Director reports to the
Group Finance Director but maintains regular contact with and
has direct access to the Audit Committee Chairman and attends
Audit Committee meetings.

Key business activities including land acquisition, product design,
procurement and information technology are controlled by the
Executive Directors. All activity is organised within a defined
structure with formal lines of responsibility, designated authority
levels and a structured reporting framework. A formalised
reporting structure is established within Redrow. 

Table 3 - Chairmanship of the Audit Committee

Chairman Term Relevant qualifications and experience 

Jim Martin 5 November 2003 to 30 March 2007 FCCA; Chief Executive of 
N Brown Group plc for 18 years 

Brian Duckworth 30 March 2007 to 1 July 2007 FCCA; previously Managing Director of Severn Trent 
Water Limited and before that its Finance Director 

Bob Bennett 1 July 2007 onwards FCA; 14 years spent as Group Finance Director of  
Northern Rock plc until his retirement from the 
Board on 31 January 2007
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The Executive Directors and the Group Senior Management meet
monthly to discuss the Group’s key issues, risks and opportunities.
The operating companies hold monthly board meetings which are
attended by the Regional Chairmen on a regular basis.

In order to build upon the Group’s existing approach to risk
management, during the year ended June 2007 the Board
appointed KPMG to undertake a strategic risk assessment of the
Group, working with and across the various business disciplines
and companies within Redrow. The Group’s operations and
processes were reviewed, key business risks and the controls in
place to manage these risks were assessed and a prioritised risk
register developed. In addition, the Executive Board, through its
regular meetings, reviews key areas of risk on an ongoing basis and
considers whether the internal controls identified in relation to
those risks remain appropriate.

The key features of the Group’s internal controls are as follows:

A policy and procedures manual which covers all the significant
aspects of the Group’s operations and describes the systems and
controls that are to be applied. The manual is reviewed and
updated regularly with amendments being approved by an
Executive Director.

The Board requires each Director in its operating subsidiaries to
complete an annual statement on Corporate Governance and
related party transactions. The statement is designed to provide
assurance that Group policies and procedures are being
implemented and complied with in all material respects. 
In addition, key functional Directors complete a Principal
Controls Self Assessment Questionnaire which is reviewed by
the Board to assist in improvements in the control framework.

Defined authorisation levels exist over key areas such as land
purchase, the placing of orders and contracts and staff
recruitment.

A monthly reporting pack is circulated in advance and reviewed
at each of the Main, Executive and subsidiary board meetings.
Annual budgets are set and quarterly forecasts prepared, with
actual performance compared against the annual budget and
updated forecasts.

The Group’s management information systems provide weekly
updates on key statistics and information in respect of sales and
production. In addition, daily statements of a reconciled cash
position identifying significant payments are prepared.

Redrow has an in-house Health and Safety department and
places great emphasis on the importance of Health and Safety.
The department works closely with the operating companies to
ensure that training is provided to employees and
subcontractors, best practice is shared and appropriate actions
are taken to comply with Health and Safety best practice and
legislation throughout the organisation.

Redrow carries out internal environmental assessments of its
sites on a regular basis, the results of which are reported to the
Board.

Internal Audit and Risk Management
Redrow has an internal audit function headed up by an Assurance
Director, whose main responsibilities relate to the internal audit
process, insurance and risk management.

During the year internal and external professional resources have
been used as appropriate to fulfil a varied programme of work. 
The programme of work is approved in advance by the Audit
Committee and commented on by PwC. It allows time for both
scheduled and unscheduled visits to companies within the Group. 

All internal audit reports are distributed to the Board as well as to
PwC and any control weaknesses are followed up as appropriate. 

Environmental Corporate Responsibility Committee report
The Environmental Corporate Responsibility Committee is
chaired by Brian Duckworth. The terms of reference of the
Committee include assessing the impact of Group operations on
the environment and communities affected by its activities and
developing and monitoring environmental corporate responsibility
policy. The terms of reference of the Committee are kept under
regular review and are published on the Group’s website.

The Committee met twice during the year ended 30 June 2007
and considered and made recommendations on a number of areas
including the Group’s sustainability and renewables policy. 
The Committee initiated a review of Redrow’s current
environmental policy and environmental management system.
The Corporate social responsibility review on pages 30 to 33
provides further information on areas of work monitored by the
Committee.
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This report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 and The
Listing Rules. As required by the Companies Act 1985, a
resolution to approve this report will be put to Shareholders for
approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 
7 November 2007.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is comprised solely of 
Non-Executive Directors. Members of the Committee and
attendance has been set out on page 37.

During the course of the year, advice of a legal or technical nature
was provided to the Remuneration Committee by Graham Cope
(Company Secretary/Group Legal Director).

The Committee has agreed terms of reference detailing its
authority and responsibilities. These responsibilities include, inter
alia, agreement of the terms of employment and the granting of
such bonuses, share options or share incentive plans relating to
the Executive Directors and Group Senior Management as may be
appropriate from time to time. The terms of reference of the
Committee are kept under regular review and are published on the
Group’s website.

The Committee meets as often as required but at least twice a
year. During the course of the financial year ended June 2007, the
Committee met on four occasions.

In support of its remuneration policy, the Committee formally
undertakes a comprehensive review of the structure of
remuneration packages relating to the Group Senior Management
at least every three years and monitors the position on an ongoing
basis to ensure that the Group provides an appropriate and
competitive package to motivate, reward and retain them. 
New Bridge Street Consultants LLP (“NBS”) undertook the last
independent triennial review during the year ended June 2006.
The Committee has consulted NBS on a range of issues during the
course of the year.

Remuneration policy
The Committee aims to ensure that the Group provides
competitive but cost effective remuneration packages at all levels
in order to reward, retain and motivate staff who are expected to
meet high levels of performance as well as ensuring our
remuneration is competitive in the market in which we operate
and attracts a high calibre of employee.

Consistent with this policy, the remuneration packages awarded to
the Company’s Directors are intended to reward Directors for their
current achievements whilst also encouraging a focus on the
medium and long term strategy and performance of the Company.
Remuneration packages are designed to ensure that the interests of
Shareholders and Executive Directors and Group Senior
Management are aligned and comprise a mix of performance
related and important operational and strategic non-performance
related remuneration. A significant proportion of remuneration is
expected to be performance related based upon fair but
challenging quantitative and qualitative targets which are

determined by the Remuneration Committee. Those elements
which are performance related are set out in further detail below.

The performance related elements under each Executive Director’s
remuneration package have clearly defined criteria that link
rewards to business performance in the short, medium and long
term.

The Committee considers that in framing its remuneration policy
it has given full consideration to the provisions of Section 1 and
Schedule A of the Combined Code.

Elements of the remuneration package
The main components of the remuneration package provided to
an Executive Director are as follows:

(i) Basic salary
Salaries are reviewed as appropriate and at least once per annum
in June. The increases from 1 July 2007 were an average of 6.7%.

(ii) Pension and retirement benefits
The Executive Directors are members of the defined benefit
section of the Redrow Staff Pension Scheme.

The Scheme is contributory at a rate of 13.3% of base salary and
provides a pension, lump sum death in service benefit and
dependant’s pension. In addition the Executive Directors are
covered by fixed term permanent health insurance.

Pension entitlement for an Executive Director accrues at the rate
of 1/45th for each year of service. The Scheme has a normal
retirement date of 65 which also applies to the Executive
Directors.

Pensionable earnings are calculated on base salary only.

(iii) Benefits in kind
These primarily relate to a fully expensed car or cash equivalent
car allowance and private medical insurance.

(iv) Cash bonuses
For the financial year ended June 2007, Executive Directors are
entitled to a bonus, payable in cash, equivalent to a maximum of
100% of their salary subject to meeting certain performance
criteria. The cash bonuses awarded for the year ended June 2007
are shown in the table on page 45. The cash bonus is payable in
September following the financial year end.

Performance is measured against challenging pre-determined
targets set by the Remuneration Committee. 

In 2007, the potential 100% cash bonus comprised 60% which
related to the delivery of profitability, 20% to key business targets
covering land, sales, customer service and Health and Safety and
20% to individual objectives. In respect of the profitability target,
the amount of the award varies from nil bonus at 90% of target to
the maximum bonus at 110% of target. The profitability target for
the Chief Executive, Executive Deputy Chairman and Group
Finance Director was based on a Group profit target; that for the
Regional Chairmen based on the profitability of their Region. 
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(v) Long Term Share Incentive Plan (LTSIP)
The current LTSIP was approved by Shareholders at the
Company’s AGM on 3 November 2004. For the 2007 annual
grant, each Executive Director will receive a grant of nil-cost
options to the value of 100% of his base salary for the financial
year ended June 2007. 

For the purposes of calculating the number of shares under option,
the average of the middle market share prices on the three days
following the announcement of the Group’s 2006/07 preliminary
results will be used.

This option grant of 100% is then allocated as to 60% upon
achievement of financial performance conditions (“Performance
Conditions”) based upon achievement of Return on Capital
Employed (“ROCE”) and growth in earnings per share (“EPS”)
and 40% relative to Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”). In respect
of the 60% dependent upon achievement of the Performance
Conditions, the options will become exercisable on the third
anniversary of the date of grant, to the extent that they are
satisfied over three consecutive financial years commencing from 
1 July in the year of grant.

The Performance Conditions for the 2007 grant (as described last
year) and those that will apply to the 2008 grant are set out in the
table below:

LTSIP - Performance Conditions

1) Average Return on Capital Employed (“x”)

Award 2007 and 2008

Nil x < 17.5%

10% 17.5%    x < 20.0%

20% 20.0%    x ≤ 22.5%

30% x > 22.5%

2) Compound Annual Growth in Earnings per Share (“y”)

Award 2007 and 2008

Nil y < rpi + 3.0%

10% rpi + 3.0%    y < rpi + 5.0%

20% rpi + 5.0%    y    rpi + 7.0%

30% y > rpi + 7.0%

Key:

> greater than

< less than

less than or equal to

In respect of all options granted prior to 30 June 2007, TSR
performance is calculated by reference to a comparator group. 
As a consequence of corporate activity in the sector, the number
of members of the comparator group has declined such that as at
30 June 2007, only six comparator companies existed as follows: 

Barratt Developments PLC Bovis Homes Group PLC
Bellway p.l.c. Taylor Wimpey Plc
Persimmon plc The Berkeley Group Holdings plc

Following advice from NBS and consultation with principal
shareholders and their representative bodies, it is intended that in
respect of future options granted with a TSR performance
element, an unweighted index comprising a comparator group of
companies will be calculated.

The performance period for the TSR annual grant runs for the
three years commencing 1 July in the year of grant. The options
will become exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of
grant, to the extent that the performance criteria are satisfied.

The trigger levels that will apply to the 2007 and 2008 awards are
as follows:

Award 2007 2008

TSR below 
median/index Nil Nil

TSR at 
median/index 10% 10%

TSR better than 
median/index Max. 40% awarded Max. 40% awarded

for upper quartile for TSR generation
TSR generation with which exceeds 
sliding scale relative the 25.97% index

to TSR generated (being 8% per annum
compound) with a

sliding scale relative
to TSR generation

The exercise of all options will be subject to the Remuneration
Committee considering the overall financial performance of
Redrow. 

Options granted under the LTSIP are provided through an
employee benefit trust and will not result in the issue of new
shares.

(vi) Phantom Share Option Scheme 
The Phantom Share Option Scheme (the “Phantom”), approved
at the Annual General Meeting on 5 November 2001, is the
vehicle used by the Company for rewarding long term performance
over a seven year performance period. This scheme ceased in
respect of new Phantom option grants on 5 November 2006.

Under the scheme, participants were granted a Phantom option
over a number of shares at the market value at the date of grant.
At the end of seven years, the participant is able to exercise the
Phantom option such that a cash sum equivalent to the difference
between the market value of the shares at the date of grant and
the market value of the shares on maturity of the scheme
(provided this is a positive figure) becomes payable in three equal
instalments over three years.

A Phantom option is exercisable only if the compound growth in
earnings per share of the Company increases by 4.5% p.a. over
RPI during a seven year period and if the simple average of return
on capital employed over the same period exceeds 20.0%. 
A Phantom option is also exercisable on a change of control of
the Company before expiration of the seven year period provided
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the performance conditions have been achieved from the date of
grant.

Under the Phantom, the following Phantom options have been
granted to the Directors of the Company in respect of 200,000
shares each:

Name Date of Grant Option Price

Neil Fitzsimmons 05/11/01 221p

Colin Lewis 05/11/01 221p

John Tutte 11/07/02 248p

David Arnold 18/09/03 342p

Directors’ service agreements
The service agreements of the Executive Directors provide for
formal notice to be served to terminate the agreement, by either
the Company or the Director. The notice required is twelve
months.

The agreements do not include provision for pre-determined
compensation for early termination and mitigation will be applied
to any compensation payments where considered justified by the
Remuneration Committee. No additional compensation or
extended notice period is included within the service agreements
in the event of a change of control. The service agreements of the
Executive Directors are twelve month rolling contracts which
were entered into on the following dates and had the following
unexpired notice periods as at 30 June 2007:

Name Contract Date Notice Period

David Arnold 17/09/03 12 months

Neil Fitzsimmons 16/09/05 12 months

Colin Lewis 12/07/01 12 months

Paul Pedley 21/09/05 12 months*

John Tutte 10/07/02 12 months

* Paul Pedley will resign as an Executive Director on 

30 September 2007

The Non-Executive Directors’ terms of appointment, with
maturity dates, are detailed in formal letters of appointment as
follows:

Name Position                       Letter of Appointment
Dated Matures

Bob Bennett Non-Executive 01/05/07 30/04/10

Brian Duckworth Senior Non-Executive 01/06/05 31/05/08

Denise Jagger Non-Executive 17/01/07 16/01/10

Malcolm King Non-Executive 07/08/07 04/11/09

Jim Martin Non-Executive 08/09/06 07/11/07*

* Jim Martin will resign as a Non-Executive Director on 

11 September 2007.

Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee which is 
non-pensionable and does not qualify for any performance 
related element. The level of fees is agreed by the Board.

Share ownership guidelines
The importance of encouraging share ownership is recognised by
the Group and to further this objective, the Remuneration
Committee set share ownership guidelines in September 2003 for
each Executive Director based upon their then current salary and
length of term served as an Executive Director. These were
reviewed provisionally in 2006. In pursuit of its wish to ensure
that Redrow’s terms of employment remain competitive, a further
review was undertaken during the year, in consultation with NBS,
as a result of which the Remuneration Committee decided to
adopt the following guidelines. 

The adopted share ownership guidelines are the market value of
shares owned as a percentage of base salary and are set out below:

Name %

David Arnold 100

Neil Fitzsimmons 200

Colin Lewis 100

John Tutte 100

Whilst the target achievement date is September 2009, the
Remuneration Committee has confirmed to the Executive
Directors that the target can be met over a longer period of time
from shares vesting to them under long term incentive
arrangements provided that, save in exceptional circumstances,
shares are not sold in the meantime, except so as to meet
obligations in respect of tax or national insurance due on such
shares.

Total shareholder return
The graph below shows the total shareholder return on the
Company’s shares over a five year period plotted against the total
shareholder return of the FTSE-250 share index (of which the
Company is a constituent) and which the Company considers to
be a representative comparative indicator:

Source: THOMPSON DATASTREAM

Over the last five years, an investment of £100.00 in the shares of
Redrow plc grew in value to £226.34 (2006: £257.20) compared
with £241.09 (2006: £172.70) from a theoretical investment of
£100.00 in the FTSE-250 share index. These calculations are
undertaken on a ‘dividend reinvestment’ basis.

Total shareholder return
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The following tables and notes constitute the auditable part of the Remuneration report other than where stated as being not auditable.

Directors’ detailed emoluments

Basic salary Car
and fees Benefits allowance Bonus Total Total

(v) (vi) 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Executive Directors

David Arnold 270 21 3 90 384 321

Neil Fitzsimmons 400 20 - 114 534 493

Barry Harvey (i) 285 21 3 66 375 367

Colin Lewis 285 22 - 91 398 369

Paul Pedley 340 1 14 97 452 413

John Tutte 285 1 14 249 549 364

Non-Executive Directors

Bob Bennett (ii) 7 - - - 7 -

Brian Duckworth 43 - - - 43 35

Denise Jagger (iii) 18 - - - 18 -

Robert Jones (iv) 115 - - - 115 138

Malcolm King 40 - - - 40 35

Jim Martin 49 - - - 49 35

2,137 86 34 707 2,964 2,570

(i) Barry Harvey resigned on 29 June 2007. On 3 July 2007 following negotiation, a payment in respect of compensation for loss 

of office was made of £805,000 which included a sum of £431,000 in lieu of the value of awards under the LTSIP 

(140,533 shares) and the Phantom (200,000 shares at 221p).

(ii) Bob Bennett was appointed on 1 May 2007.

(iii) Denise Jagger was appointed on 17 January 2007.

(iv) Robert Jones resigned on 30 March 2007.

(v) The base salary increases awarded from 1 July 2006 reflected the independent remuneration review undertaken in the year

ended June 2006.

(vi) The cash bonuses awarded to the Executive Directors in respect of 2007 relate to their performance against a number of

targets. The principal performance target was in respect of profitability which represented a maximum of 60% of base salary 

and it was largely the performance in respect of his region’s profitability that accounted for the award of 87% of base salary 

to John Tutte.
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Pension Scheme
Details of the Executive Directors’ pension entitlements are as follows:

Disclosure required by Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985

Additional Transfer Transfer
accrued value of value of Change in

Accrued benefits accrued accrued transfer value
benefit at earned in benefit at benefit at less directors’

30 June 2007 the year 30 June 2006 30 June 2007 contributions
Director £ £ £ £ £

David Arnold 14,023 5,124 45,449 74,785 (6,573)

Neil Fitzsimmons 32,429 9,020 162,647 242,974 27,127

Barry Harvey 36,572 7,311 387,081 538,089 113,103

Colin Lewis 40,113 7,442 257,072 345,957 50,980

Paul Pedley 164,688 9,444 1,330,371 1,565,523 178,627

John Tutte 16,362 6,558 77,009 136,374 21,460

Disclosure required under the Listings Regulations
Transfer value

Additional of change
accrued in accrued

Accrued benefit benefit less
benefit at over year net directors’

30 June 2007 of inflation contributions
Director £ £ £

David Arnold 14,023 4,804 (11,891)

Neil Fitzsimmons 32,429 8,177 3,940

Barry Harvey 36,572 6,257 46,742

Colin Lewis 40,113 6,266 11,870

Paul Pedley 164,688 3,856 (28,982)

John Tutte 16,362 6,205 10,676

The accrued pension shown above is the amount of pension entitlement that would be paid each year on retirement at age 65 based on
service to the end of the current year. The transfer value shown above has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in
accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11, less Directors’ contributions. The transfer values represent the present value of future
payments from the Scheme rather than remuneration currently due to the individual and cannot be meaningfully aggregated with
annual remuneration.

The base salary used in the calculations as at 30 June 2007 for Paul Pedley is a notional salary for pension scheme benefits of £425,000,
being his base salary as at 1 August 2005 in his capacity as the then Chief Executive.
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The following table sets out those share options held by Directors under SAYE schemes, those which have been awarded in respect of past
performance or those which have been granted with performance conditions attached. All options are in respect of shares in 
Redrow plc.

Interests in share options
Directors’ interests in share options

Scheme Options  Options Options Options Options  Exercise From To Notional
held at granted lapsed exercised held at price market value 
1 July in year in year 30 June at 30 June
2006 2007 2007*

£ £

D L Arnold
SAYE 2005 2,702 2,702 3.46 02/01/09 02/07/09 4,566
LTSIP 2003 8,417 (8,417) 0 Current 21/09/13
LTSIP 2004† 24,849 24,849 20/09/07 19/09/14
LTSIP 2005†† 46,957 46,957 19/09/08 18/09/15
LTSIP 2006††† 40,263 40,263 21/09/09 20/09/16

82,925 40,263 (8,417) 114,771 4,566
N Fitzsimmons
SAYE 2003 2,733 (2,733) 0 2.70 Current 02/07/07
SAYE 2005 540 540 3.46 02/01/09 02/07/09 913
SAYE 2006 376 376 5.02 01/01/10 01/07/10 49
LTSIP 2003 17,991 (17,991) 0 Current 21/09/13
LTSIP 2004† 43,438 43,438 20/09/07 19/09/14
LTSIP 2005†† 76,305 76,305 19/09/08 18/09/15
LTSIP 2006††† 61,269 61,269 21/09/09 20/09/16

141,007 61,645 (20,724) 181,928 962
B K Harvey
SAYE 2002 1,500 1,500 2.19 4,440
LTSIP 2003 18,657 (18,657) 0
LTSIP 2004† 36,323 (36,323) 0
LTSIP 2005†† 58,696 (58,696) 0
LTSIP 2006††† 45,514 (45,514) 0

115,176 45,514 (140,533) (18,657) 1,500 4,440
C E Lewis
SAYE 2001 2,006 (2,006) 0 1.65 Current 02/07/07
SAYE 2004 1,219 1,219 2.71 02/01/10 02/07/10 2,974
SAYE 2006 1,304 1,304 5.02 01/01/12 01/07/12 170
LTSIP 2003 17,547 (17,547) 0 Current 21/09/13
LTSIP 2004† 36,323 36,323 20/09/07 19/09/14
LTSIP 2005†† 58,696 58,696 19/09/08 18/09/15
LTSIP 2006††† 45,514 45,514 21/09/09 20/09/16

115,791 46,818 (19,553) 143,056 3,144
P L Pedley
LTSIP 2003 33,983 (33,983) 0 Current 21/09/13
LTSIP 2004† 68,609 68,609 20/09/07 19/09/14
LTSIP 2005†† 99,784 99,784 19/09/08 18/09/15
LTSIP 2006††† 54,340 54,340 21/09/09 20/09/16

202,376 54,340 (33,983) 222,733 0
J F Tutte
SAYE 2003 3,416 (3,416) 0 2.70 Current 02/07/07
SAYE 2006 1,882 1,882 5.02 01/01/10 01/07/10 245
LTSIP 2003 17,325 (17,325) 0 Current 21/09/13
LTSIP 2004† 36,323 36,323 20/09/07 19/09/14
LTSIP 2005†† 58,696 58,696 19/09/08 18/09/15
LTSIP 2006††† 45,514 45,514 21/09/09 20/09/16

115,760 47,396 (20,741) 142,415 245

† The performance conditions attached to the exercise of share options granted under the LTSIP 2004 are growth in ROCE and
EPS. The performance condition end date is 30 June 2007. Based on the achievement of the ROCE and EPS performance
conditions, one third of the options granted will vest on 20 September 2007 and the remaining two thirds will lapse. The
notional market value of the options due to vest on 20 September 2007 was £359,714 based on a share price of 515.0p 
at 30 June 2007.

†† The performance conditions attached to the exercise of share options granted under the LTSIP 2005 are ROCE, growth in EPS
and generation of Total Shareholder Return. The performance condition end date is 30 June 2008.

††† The performance conditions attached to the exercise of share options granted under the LTSIP 2006 are ROCE, growth in EPS
and generation of Total Shareholder Return. The performance condition end date is 30 June 2009.

* The notional market value of the share options are based on a share price of 515.0p as at 30 June 2007 and assumes all
options were capable of being exercised at that date. No notional market value has been given for the share options granted
under the LTSIP 2005 and LTSIP 2006 as performance conditions are attached to the exercise of these options.
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The mid-market price of Redrow plc shares at 30 June 2007 was 515.0p and the range during the year was 469.75p to 727.0p.

Gains made by Directors on share options
Gains made by individual directors from the exercise of share options during the financial year ended June 2007 are set out in the table
below. The gains are calculated as at the exercise date, although in some cases shares were retained.

Gains made by Directors on share options

Share No. Mid price on Notional gain
option shares Date of date of exercise on exercise

Executive Director scheme exercised exercise pence £000

David Arnold LTSIP 2003 8,417 25 September 2006 567.0 48

Neil Fitzsimmons LTSIP 2003 17,991 25 September 2006 567.0 102

Neil Fitzsimmons SAYE 2003 2,733 2 January 2007 726.5 12

20,724 114

Barry Harvey LTSIP 2003 18,657 25 September 2006 567.0 106

Colin Lewis LTSIP 2003 17,547 25 September 2006 567.0 99

Colin Lewis SAYE 2001 2,006 21 December 2006 711.5 11

19,553 110

Paul Pedley LTSIP 2003 33,983 25 September 2006 567.0 193

John Tutte LTSIP 2003 17,325 25 September 2006 567.0 98

John Tutte SAYE 2003 3,416 2 January 2007 726.5 16

20,741 114

Directors’ contingent interests in share options
No Director has a contingent interest in share options at 30 June 2007. At 30 June 2006, the contingent interests related to the 2003
LTSIP representing 113,920 shares in total. None of these shares were subsequently awarded.
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Directors’ interests in shares (This section does not constitute an auditable part of the Remuneration report).

The Directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company were:

Beneficial: 10 September 30 June 30 June
2007 2007 2006

No. No. No.

Executive Directors

David Arnold 15,732 15,732 7,315

Neil Fitzsimmons 160,304 160,304 143,214

Colin Lewis 75,779 75,779 72,021

Paul Pedley - - 650,000

John Tutte 38,928 38,640 23,400

Non-Executive Directors

Bob Bennett - - -

Brian Duckworth 6,140 6,044 5,536

Denise Jagger 1,300 1,300 -

Malcolm King 8,208 8,112 7,604

Jim Martin 10,000 10,000 10,000

By order of the Board
Malcolm King
Chairman Remuneration Committee
10 September 2007
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to the members their
report and the financial statements for the 12 months ended 
30 June 2007.

Principal activities and business review
The principal activities of the Group are residential and
commercial property development.

Revenue and profit on ordinary activities before taxation are
stated at £795.7m and £120.5m respectively. 

The information that fulfils the requirements of the business
review can be found in the Chief Executive and Finance Director’s
business review on pages 12 to 29. This includes a review of the
key risks facing the business and a review of the key performance
indicators of the business.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Group for
that period in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU. 
In preparing the financial statements the Directors ensure that
suitable accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently, that reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates have been made and that applicable accounting
standards have been followed. The Directors are required to
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in
business. The Directors are responsible for maintaining adequate
accounting records, and are also responsible for taking such steps
and instituting and maintaining such systems and controls as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Directors confirm they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing these financial statements.

The maintenance and integrity of the Redrow plc website is the
responsibility of the Directors. The work carried out by the
external Auditors does not involve consideration of these matters
and accordingly, the external Auditors accept no responsibility for
any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements
since they were initially presented on the website.

So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group’s external Auditors are unaware.
Each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group’s external Auditors
are aware of that information.

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Going concern
The Directors have considered the Group’s financial position and
trading prospects and consider they have a reasonable expectation
for stating that Redrow plc has adequate resources to continue
trading for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 10 September 2007, the Company has been advised of the
following notifiable interests of 3% or more in its ordinary shares:

No. of % of issued 
Name shares held share capital

Lloyds TSB Group plc 15,748,540 9.9

Bridgemere Securities Limited 8,400,130 5.3

Legal & General Group plc 5,467,132 3.4

Mirabaud Investment 

Management Limited 4,826,130 3.0

MAN Financial Limited 4,820,629 3.0

Directors
The Directors are listed together with their biographical details on
pages 34 and 35.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, 
John Tutte and Malcolm King will retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. As part of the Board’s annual evaluation process, each
Executive Director underwent formal performance evaluations
which included looking at the individual’s effective contribution.
As identified in the Corporate Governance statement, on page 38,
formal individual performance evaluation of the Non-Executive
Directors was deferred though the Board collectively considered
overall performance. The Board confirms that John Tutte, who
stands for re-election as Executive Director, and Malcolm King,
who stands for re-election as a Non-Executive Director, continue
to be effective and demonstrate the appropriate commitment to
their roles.

In accordance with Article 79 of the Articles of Association, 
Alan Bowkett, Bob Bennett and Denise Jagger, having been
appointed since the 2006 AGM, offer themselves for 
re-appointment.

The Executive Directors have formal service agreements.
Termination of their employment may be effected by twelve
months notice given by either party. 

The Non-Executive Directors have fixed term service agreements
outlining their duties and responsibilities.

Details of Directors’ service agreements are given in the
Remuneration report on page 44.
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Directors’ interests
There were no material related party transactions which require
disclosure.

The Directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company are
given in the Remuneration report on pages 42 to 49.

Charitable and political donations
The Group made no political donations but paid £334,000 in
charitable donations during the year being £267,000 in respect of
National charities and £67,000 in support of local charities. 
The Group and its employees are actively involved in fundraising
activities for specific charities.

In March 2006, Redrow established the Redrow Foundation. 
This independent charitable trust which is a registered charity
seeks to relieve poverty and sickness in the UK, and in particular
to provide accommodation and related assistance, including
respite care, especially for children, the elderly and those who are
sick or infirm. In the year ended June 2007, Redrow paid £50 per
home legally completed to the Redrow Foundation. The amount
paid to the Foundation is included within the charitable donations
in respect of National charities disclosed above and amounted to
£241,000 in 2006/07.

Employees
Redrow places considerable importance on the provision of
training and development; training@redrow, a purpose built 
in-house training facility at Tamworth, offers over 40 different
courses including those which support the Group induction
process.

The Group supports the employment of disabled persons wherever
possible through recruitment and by the retention and retraining
of those who become disabled during their employment.

The Directors recognise the importance of good communications
with employees. Companies within the Group are encouraged to
make their employees aware of the financial and economic factors
affecting their respective companies and the Group. This is
assisted through the medium of regular management meetings and
staff publications. Employee share ownership is encouraged
through savings related schemes. In the year ended 30 June 2007,
the Save As You Earn scheme was administered via a Qualifying
Employee Share Ownership Trust (QUEST).

Creditor payment policy
The Group values its relationships with suppliers and
subcontractors. It is the policy to agree credit terms prior to
commencement of trading. Subject to any items of genuine
dispute, it is policy to pay creditors within the terms agreed. 
At June 2007 the Group had 46 days’ purchases outstanding in
respect of payments to suppliers and subcontractors 
(2006: 42 days). The Company had nil days’ purchases
outstanding in respect of payments to suppliers (2006: nil).

Research and development
The Group has a centralised Product Development Team charged
with identifying and evaluating new construction techniques and
products. Environmental and sustainability issues play a prominent
role in its activities.

Environment
Redrow recognises its responsibilities to the community as a whole
and has adopted an environmental strategy which is a core part of
the Group’s objectives. Further details are provided in the
Corporate social responsibility review on pages 30 to 33 and also
on our website at www.redrow.co.uk.

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
external Auditors will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting on 7 November 2007.

Purchase of the Company’s own shares 
Resolution 12 set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting
seeks authority from Shareholders for the Company to purchase up
to 15,982,704 ordinary shares, an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,598,270, which is equivalent to approximately 10% of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 30 June 2007. 
The authority will expire at the end of next year’s Annual General
Meeting and the resolution specifies the maximum and minimum
prices at which the shares may be bought. Other investment
opportunities, appropriate gearing levels and the overall financial
position of the Company will be taken into account before
deciding upon this course of action. 

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Pages 82 to 86 set out the Notice of Annual General Meeting and
details the resolutions proposed together with explanatory notes.

By order of the Board
Graham Cope
Company Secretary 
10 September 2007
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Redrow plc
We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial
statements (the “financial statements”) of Redrow plc for the year
ended 30 June 2007 which comprise the Consolidated income
statement, the Balance sheets, the Cash flow statements, the
Statements of recognised income and expense, Accounting
policies and the related notes. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We
have also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration
report that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including
the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to
be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’
report is consistent with the financial statements. 

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration
and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the
Combined Code 2003 specified for our review by the Listing Rules
of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not.
We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statements on
internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures
or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. The other information comprises only the “About Us”
and the “Business Review” sections, the Corporate Governance
statement, the unaudited part of the Remuneration report and the
Directors’ report. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material

inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities
do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to
be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the Accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
report to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:

the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of
the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 June 2007 and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

the Parent Company financial statements give a true and fair
view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1985, of the state of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 30 June 2007 and of its cash flows for the year then
ended;

the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation; and

the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent
with the financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester
10 September 2007 
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Consolidated income statement

12 months ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m

Revenue 1 795.7 770.1 

Cost of sales (612.7) (592.0)

Gross profit 183.0 178.1

Administrative expenses (46.4) (45.3)

Operating profit before financing costs 1,2 136.6 132.8

Financial income 3 1.6 0.6

Financial expenses 3 (16.9) (12.1)

Net financing costs (15.3) (11.5)

Share of loss of joint ventures after interest and taxation 10 (0.8) (0.8)

Profit before tax 120.5 120.5

Income tax expense 4 (36.1) (36.4)

Profit for the period 19 84.4 84.1

Earnings per share - basic 6 52.9p 52.9p

- diluted 6 52.8p 52.7p
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Balance sheets

As at 30 June 2007 The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Note £m £m £m £m

Assets 

Intangible assets 8 0.3 0.4 - -  

Plant, property and equipment 9 24.6 23.8 - -  

Investments 10 3.7 2.4 30.7 30.7 

Deferred tax assets 11 3.4 5.0 1.6 3.7 

Derivative financial instruments 14 0.6 0.2 0.6 0.2 

Retirement benefit surplus 7 6.1 - 6.1 -

Trade and other receivables 12 4.1 0.8 - - 

Total non-current assets 42.8 32.6  39.0 34.6 

Inventories 13 988.7 849.6  - -  

Trade and other receivables 12 28.5 25.5  398.1 294.8  

Derivative financial instruments 14 1.1 0.2  1.1 0.2  

Cash and cash equivalents 14 12.2 24.5  11.5 23.1 

Total current assets 1,030.5 899.8  410.7 318.1  

Total assets 1,073.3 932.4  449.7 352.7 

Equity 

Issued capital 17 16.0 16.0  16.0 16.0 

Share premium 18 58.1 56.2  58.0 56.1  

Hedge reserve 18 1.2 0.3 1.2 0.3 

Other reserves 18 7.9 7.9 7.0 7.0 

Retained earnings 18 494.6 433.4 114.2 99.9  

Total equity 19 577.8 513.8 196.4 179.3  

Liabilities 

Bank loans 14 169.7 131.5  169.7 131.5 

Trade and other payables 15 48.8 41.9  - -

Deferred tax liabilities 11 3.0 1.6 0.5 0.1 

Retirement benefit obligations 7 - 8.6 - 8.6 

Long-term provisions 16 3.4 4.4 - - 

Total non-current liabilities 224.9 188.0  170.2 140.2 

Bank overdrafts and loans 14 20.1 22.8  61.1 15.4 

Trade and other payables 15 233.8 191.4  21.8 8.7  

Current income tax liabilities 16.7 16.4  0.2 9.1  

Total current liabilities 270.6 230.6 83.1 33.2 

Total liabilities 495.5 418.6  253.3 173.4  

Total equity and liabilities 1,073.3 932.4  449.7 352.7 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 September 2007. 

Directors 
N Fitzsimmons 
D L Arnold
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Cash flow statements

12 months ended 30 June 2007 The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Note £m £m £m £m

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit/(loss) before financing costs 136.6 132.8 (2.4) (0.9) 

Depreciation and amortisation 2.3 2.3  - - 

Adjustment for non-cash items 3.1 (7.4) 6.4 (2.7) 

Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working 

capital and provisions 142.0 127.7 4.0 (3.6)

Increase in trade and other receivables (6.3) (13.6)  (110.2) (47.7)  

Increase in inventories (139.1) (88.6)  - - 

Increase in trade and other payables 49.6 16.0 10.1 2.4 

(Decrease)/increase in employee benefits and provisions (15.7) 3.0   (14.7) 0.7 

Cash generated from operations 30.5 44.5 (110.8) (48.2) 

Interest paid (13.9) (8.9) (13.7) (8.6) 

Tax paid (35.2) (40.5) - -  

Net cash from operating activities (18.6) (4.9)  (124.5) (56.8) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Acquisition of plant, property and equipment (5.2) (2.2)  - - 

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 2.6 - - - 

Interest received 0.9 0.5 21.7 15.9 

Payments to joint ventures (2.3) (0.6) - - 

Net cash from investing activities (4.0) (2.3) 21.7 15.9  

Cash flows from financing activities 

Issue of bank borrowings 170.0 98.0 170.0 98.0

Repayment of bank borrowings (132.0) (70.5) (132.0) (70.5)

Issue costs of bank borrowings (0.1) - (0.1) - 

Purchase of own shares (0.5) (2.9) - - 

Dividends (paid)/received (26.3) (18.4) 5.7 13.1 

Proceeds from issue of share capital 1.9 2.1 1.9 2.1 

Net cash from financing activities 13.0 8.3  45.5 42.7 

(Decrease)/increase in net cash and cash equivalents (9.6) 1.1 (57.3) 1.8  

Net cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning of the period 1.7 0.6 7.7 5.9 

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 20 (7.9) 1.7 (49.6) 7.7 
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Statements of recognised income and expense

12 months ended 30 June 2007 The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Note £m £m £m £m

Effective portion of changes in fair value 

of interest rate cash flow hedges 1.3 0.6 1.3 0.6

Deferred tax on change in fair value of interest 

rate cash flow hedges (0.4) (0.2) (0.4) (0.2)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit 

pension scheme 7e 5.8 (2.8) 5.8 (2.8)

Deferred tax on actuarial gains/(losses) 

taken directly to equity (1.7) 0.8 (1.7) 0.8

Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity 19 5.0 (1.6) 5.0 (1.6)

Profit for the period 84.4 84.1 4.5 4.2

Total recognised income and expense for the period 18 89.4 82.5 9.5 2.6
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Accounting policies

Both the consolidated and Company financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(EU) and effective or available for early adoption at 30 June 2007,
and in accordance with Companies Act 1985 as it applies to
companies reporting under IFRS and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and in accordance with the historical cost convention
as modified by the revaluation of derivative financial instruments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period.  Whilst these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates (refer to
note 24).

The principal accounting policies which have been applied
consistently in the periods presented are outlined below:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of Redrow plc and all its subsidiaries, together with 
the Group’s share of the results and share of net assets of 
jointly controlled entities made up to 30 June each year i.e. the
financial statements of Redrow plc and entities controlled by
Redrow plc (and its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
Redrow plc has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity.

a) Subsidiaries  
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured at their fair value at the date
of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets represents
goodwill. Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment review,
with any reduction in value being taken straight to the income
statement.

Adjustments are made as necessary to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

All inter-company transactions and balances between Group
companies are eliminated on consolidation.

b) Interests in Joint Ventures
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject
to joint control. Joint venture arrangements which involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an
interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The Group
reports its interests in jointly controlled entities using the equity
method of accounting - the Group’s share of profit after tax is
shown separately on the face of the income statement and its
share of net assets is included within non-current assets in the
balance sheet as an investment.

When the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint venture, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. 
Where joint venture arrangements are undertaken directly, the
Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and liabilities are
recognised in the relevant subsidiary company and classified
according to their nature. 

Revenue and profit recognition
Revenue represents the fair value received and receivable in
respect of the sale of residential housing and of commercial land
and developments net of value added tax and discounts. This is
recognised on legal completion. 

Profit is recognised on legal completion.

Net finance costs
Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate. Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement on
an accruals basis in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. 

Current tax is based on taxable profits for the year and any
appropriate adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as shown in the
income statement as it excludes income or expenditure items
which are never chargeable or allowable for tax or which are
chargeable or deductible in other accounting periods.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the calculation
of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax is calculated
at the rates enacted at the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax is credited or charged in the income statement,
statement of recognised income and expense, or retained earnings
as appropriate.

Intangible assets – computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of
costs incurred to bring to use the specific software and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three years. 
These are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable.

Plant, property and equipment
Freehold property comprises offices or other buildings held for
administrative purposes. Freehold property is shown at cost (or
deemed cost at opening balance sheet date under the IFRS 1
transitional rules) less the subsequent depreciation of buildings.
Long leasehold property comprises offices. The building element of
the lease is accounted for as a finance lease and the land element
of the lease is accounted for as an operating lease.

All other plant, property and equipment is stated at historic cost
less depreciation. Historic cost includes any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets, excluding
assets in the course of construction, is charged so as to write off
the cost of assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, on a straight line basis as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant & machinery 5 – 10 years
Fixtures & fittings 3 – 5 years

These are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset represents the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Investment in subsidiary companies
In the parent company books, the investment in its subsidiaries is
held at cost.

Leases
Leases in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to work
in progress or income on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Leases classified as finance leases are those where
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the
lessee. Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the date of acquisition or the
present value of monthly lease payments if lower. 

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
less cash on account.

Cost comprises land and associated acquisition costs, direct
materials and subcontract work, other direct costs and those
overheads (based on normal operating capacity) that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the normal course of business less relevant variable
marketing, selling and distribution expenses.

Forward land
Expenditure relating to forward land, including options, fees etc is
provided for when incurred. After exercise of an option and
acquisition of land following the securing of planning permission,
the provisions relating to that land are released.

Employee benefits
a) Pension obligation
The Group operates a contributory pension scheme for all its staff.
The scheme is externally invested and comprises two sections: a
defined benefit section and a defined contribution section. 
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan which defines an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement. 
It is funded through payments to trustee administered funds,
determined by actuarial valuations carried out on at least a
triennial basis. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays agreed contributions into a separate
fund for each employee and any subsequent pension payable to a
specific employee is determined by the amount accumulated in
their individual fund.

The asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined
benefit section of the scheme is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is determined using the
projected unit credit method on an annual basis by an
independent scheme actuary.

Under IAS 19, revised December 2004, the Group has taken the
option to allow actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions to be charged or
credited to equity as they arise in full via the statement of
recognised income and expense.

Scheme service costs are charged to gross contribution and
administrative expenses as appropriate and scheme finance costs
are included in net financing costs. Past service costs are
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested, or otherwise amortised on a straight line basis over the
vesting period, if they are conditional on the employees remaining
in service for a further period.
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In respect of the defined contribution section of the scheme,
contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
they are due. The Group has no further payment obligations in
respect of the defined contribution section of the Scheme once
the contributions have been paid.

b) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where
contractually obliged.

c) Share-based payments
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based
payments’. In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2
has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 
7 November 2002, which had not vested as of 1 July 2004. 
Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value on 
the date of grant and expensed on a straight line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest.

Financial instruments
a) Land creditors
Deferred payments arising from land creditors are
held at discounted present value using the effective interest
method, in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the
fair value and the nominal value is amortised over the deferment
period via financing costs.

The interest rate applied is an equivalent loan rate available on
the date of the land purchase.

b) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value
and the fair value is remeasured to fair value at each reporting
date.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments which are designated and which
qualify as cashflow hedges are recognised directly in equity in a
hedge reserve. The gains or losses relating to the ineffective
portion are recognised in the income statement immediately they
arise.

c) Long term trade receivables 
Long term trade receivables are held at discounted present value.
The amount is then increased to settlement value over the
settlement period via financing income.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are declared and appropriately authorised.

Impact of new standards and interpretation
The Group has considered the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations and does not expect them to
have a material effect on the Group.

a) Standards and interpretations in issue
- IFRIC 7: Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29

- IFRIC 8: Scope of IFRS 2

- IFRIC 9: Reassessment of embedded derivatives

b) Standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective
- IFRS 7: Financial instruments: disclosures

- IFRS 8: Operating segments

- IFRIC 10: Interims and impairment

- IFRIC 11: IFRS 2 – Group and treasury share transactions

- IFRIC 12: Service concession arrangements
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Note 1. Segmental information 

The Group’s segmental information based on it primary business segments for management purposes is given below.

As the Group operates in a single geographic market, the United Kingdom and Jersey, no secondary segment analysis is provided.

a. Income statement 2007 2006
£m £m

Revenue

Homes 757.0 765.5 

Mixed Use & Regeneration 38.7 4.6

795.7 770.1

Homes - gross profit 174.7 177.8

Homes - administrative expenses (45.0) (44.0)

Homes - operating profit 129.7 133.8

Mixed Use & Regeneration - operating profit 6.6 0.7

Framing Solutions - operating loss (0.7) (0.8)

135.6 133.7

Jersey provision - (2.0)

135.6 131.7

Add back share of joint venture operating losses 1.0 1.1

Operating profit before financing costs 136.6 132.8

Net financing costs (15.3) (11.5)

121.3 121.3

Share of loss of joint ventures after interest and taxation (0.8) (0.8)

Profit before tax 120.5 120.5 

Income tax expense (36.1) (36.4)

Profit for the period 84.4 84.1

Mixed Use & Regeneration includes a loss of £0.3m (2006: loss of £0.3m) in respect of The Waterford Park Company Limited, a joint
venture company.
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b. Balance sheet 2007 2006
£m £m

Segment assets
Homes 1,018.3 884.9 
Mixed Use & Regeneration 43.2 23.0 
Framing Solutions - share of joint venture 1.8 1.6

1,063.3 909.5
Elimination of inter-segment items (2.2) (1.6)

1,061.1 907.9
Cash and cash equivalents 12.2 24.5

Consolidated total assets 1,073.3 932.4 

Segment liabilities
Homes 284.7 254.8 
Mixed Use & Regeneration 23.2 11.1 

307.9 265.9
Elimination of inter-segment items (2.2) (1.6)

305.7 264.3
Borrowings 189.8 154.3

Consolidated total liabilities 495.5 418.6 

Total equity 577.8 513.8

c. Other information 2007 2006
£m £m

Intangible and plant, property & equipment capital expenditure
Homes 5.1 2.2
Mixed Use & Regeneration 0.1 -

Depreciation and amortisation
Homes 2.3 2.3
Mixed Use & Regeneration - -

Note 2. Operating profit before financing costs 2007 2006
£m £m

Operating profit before financing costs is stated 

After crediting:
Rental income 0.1 0.1
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 0.4 -
After charging:
Depreciation 2.1 2.2 
Amortisation 0.2 0.1
Plant hire 8.6 8.9
Operating leases - plant and machinery 1.6 1.6

- other 0.2 0.2
Research and development expenditure 0.4 0.4
Auditors’ remuneration - audit of Company and its subsidiaries 0.2 0.2

- non-audit services 0.1 0.1

Auditors’ remuneration included £30,000 (2006: £28,000) in respect of the audit of the Company and the consolidation and £129,000
(2006: £126,000) in respect of the audit of its subsidiaries.

Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services comprised £22,000 (2006: £60,000) in respect of pensions advice from the Scheme Actuary
on actuarial and accounts pension scheme disclosure matters, £105,000 (2006: £nil) in respect of a draft unissued circular, and £nil in
respect of advice on International Financial Reporting Standards (2006: £51,000).
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Note 3. Net financing costs 2007 2006
£m £m

Interest payable on overdrafts (0.4) (0.6)

Interest payable on other bank loans (13.7) (8.5)

(14.1) (9.1)

Imputed interest on deferred land creditors (2.8) (3.0)

(16.9) (12.1)

Interest received on pension scheme 0.7 0.1

Other interest receivable 0.9 0.5

1.6 0.6

Net financing costs (15.3) (11.5)

Interest expense includes £0.2m in respect of the amortisation of the issue costs of bank borrowings (2006: £0.2m).

Note 4. Income tax expense 2007 2006
£m £m

Current tax expense

U.K. Corporation Tax at 30.0% (2006: 30.0%) 34.6 33.2 

Under/(over) provision in respect of prior year 0.5 (0.2)

35.1 33.0 

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (see Note 11) 1.0 3.4

Total income tax expense in income statement 36.1 36.4

Reconciliation of tax expense for the year

Profit before tax 120.5 120.5

Tax calculated at UK corporation tax rate of 30.0% (2006: 30.0%) 36.2 36.2

Under/(over) provision in respect of prior year 0.5 (0.2)

Tax effect of share of losses in joint ventures 0.4 0.3

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes net of rolled over capital gains 0.2 0.2

Short term temporary differences (1.2) (0.1)

Tax expense for the year 36.1 36.4

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity

Relating to pension scheme (1.7) 0.8

Relating to fair value adjustment on interest rate swaps (0.4) (0.2)

Relating to share-based payment 0.1 -

Relating to short term temporary differences - (0.1)

(2.0) 0.5
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Note 5. Dividends 2007 2006
£m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:

2006 final dividend paid of 8.7p per share (2005: 7.2p) 13.9 11.5  

2007 interim dividend paid of 7.8p per share (2006: 4.3p) 12.4 6.9  

26.3 18.4 

The proposed final dividend of £12.4m (7.8p per share) will be paid on 16 November 2007, subject to approval at the Annual General
Meeting on 7 November 2007 and, in accordance with IAS 10, has therefore not been included as a liability in these financial
statements.

As at 30 June 2007 no shareholder has waived their rights to dividends.

Note 6. Earnings per ordinary share

The basic earnings per share calculation for the year ended 30 June 2007 is based on the weighted number of shares in issue during the
period of 159.5m (2006: 159.1m) excluding those held in trust under the Redrow Long Term Incentive Plan, which are treated as cancelled.

Diluted earnings per share has been calculated after adjusting the weighted average number of shares in issue for all potentially dilutive
shares held under unexercised options.

No. of No. of 
Earnings shares Per share Earnings shares Per share

2007 2006
£m millions pence £m millions pence

Basic earnings per share 84.4 159.5 52.9 84.1 159.1 52.9 

Effect of share options and SAYE - 0.4 (0.1) - 0.4 (0.2)

Diluted earnings per share 84.4 159.9 52.8 84.1 159.5 52.7 
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Note 7. Employees 2007 2006
a. Cost (including Directors) £m £m

Salaries and wages 47.6 45.6 

Social security 5.7 5.6

Pensions 3.3 4.1 

56.6 55.3

b. Number 2007 2006
number number

The average number of persons employed by the Group was:

Directors and administrative staff 583 563

Other personnel 789 806

1,372 1,369 

c. Key Management remuneration

Key management personnel, as defined under IAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures), are identified as the Main Board together with 
Group Senior Management.
Summary key management remuneration is as follows:

2007 2006
£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 3.2 2.6

Post-employment benefits 0.5 0.2

Share-based payment 0.7 0.5

4.4 3.3

Detailed disclosure of Directors’ emoluments and interests in shares are included in the Remuneration report on pages 42 to 49.

d. Share-based payment

Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme
The Redrow plc Save As You Earn scheme is open to all employees and share options can be exercised either 3 or 5 years after the date
of grant, depending on the length of the savings contract. The Save As You Earn schemes are not subject to performance conditions.

The Save As You Earn schemes have been valued using the Black Scholes pricing model.

2007 2006

Options granted during the year 252,447 303,370 

Date of grant 1 January 2007 2 January 2006

Fair value at measurement date £2.60/£2.83 £1.98/£3.14

Share price £7.15 £5.35

Exercise price £5.02 £3.46

Expected volatility 27.00%/27.00% 26.95%/72.67%

Option life (contract length) 3/5 years 3/5 years

Expected dividend 2.20% 3.00%

Risk free interest rate 4.903% 4.18%

The expected volatility on Save As You Earn schemes is based on the historic volatility of the Group’s share price over periods equal to
the length of the savings contract.
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Long Term Share Incentive Scheme
Except in specified circumstances, options granted under the Scheme are exercisable between 3 and 10 years after the date of grant.

Options granted under the LTSIP on 21 September 2006 were granted to a limited number of Senior Executives. The scheme is discussed
in greater detail within the Remuneration report.

The Long Term Share Incentive schemes have been valued using the Black Scholes pricing model, with the exception of the TSR
element of the options granted on 21 September 2006 and on 23 September 2005 for which a simulation model provided by external
consultants has been used.

2007 2006

Options granted during the year 440,830 435,526

Date of grant 21 September 2006 23 September 2005

Fair value at measurement date £2.19/£5.36 £1.47/£3.84

Share price £5.72 £4.20

Exercise price £0.00 £0.00

Expected volatility 27.00% 26.95%

Option life 3 years 3 years

Expected dividend 2.20% 3.00%

Risk free interest rate 4.903% 4.18%

The fair value at measurement date of the LTSIP granted on 21 September 2006 comprises £2.19 in respect of the TSR element, and
£5.36 in respect of non-market based performance conditions (23 September 2005 grant: £1.47 in respect of the TSR element and £3.84
in respect of non-market based performance conditions).

The expected volatility of the Long Term Share Incentive scheme is based on the historic volatility of the Group’s share price over a
period equivalent to that of the options’ vesting. The expected volatility of the TSR element of the options granted on 21 September
2006 is based on the historic volatility of Redrow and its peer group companies (being the comparator group as defined in the
Remuneration report).
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Share Options outstanding
The following share options were outstanding at 30 June 2007:

Type of scheme Date of Grant Number of shares Number of shares Exercise price
2007 2006

Long Term Share Incentive 30 June 1999 4,772 4,772  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 30 June 2000 12,103 12,103  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 30 June 2001 2,918 9,601  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 28 September 2001 3,752 4,430  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 30 June 2002 3,406 4,416  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 23 September 2002 14,317 25,185 -   

Long Term Share Incentive 30 June 2003 3,833 8,160 -   

Long Term Share Incentive 22 September 2003 - 155,509  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 25 June 2004 2,455 6,132  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 20 September 2004 246,941 355,370  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 28 September 2004 4,430 4,430  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 24 June 2005 982 3,359  -   

Long Term Share Incentive 19 September 2005 390,330 557,389   -   

Long Term Share Incentive 23 September 2005 5,820 8,496   -   

Long Term Share Incentive 21 September 2006 366,213 -  -   

Save As You Earn 2 January 2002 401 93,073  £1.65 

Save As You Earn 1 December 2002 78,300 87,450  £2.19 

Save As You Earn 2 January 2004 66,131 259,999  £2.70 

Save As You Earn 1 January 2005 215,733 266,007 £2.71 

Save As You Earn 2 January 2006 234,847 303,370   £3.46

Save As You Earn 2 January 2007 225,349 -   £5.02

The total share options outstanding at 30 June 2007 under the Long Term Share Incentive Plan and the Save As You Earn schemes
represent 1.2% of the issued share capital.
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Movements in the year
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of 

price options price options
2007 2007 2006 2006

Executive Share Option scheme:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - £1.17 13,000 

Forfeited during the year - - (£1.17) (13,000)  

Exercised during the year - - -   -   

Granted during the year - - -   -    

Outstanding at the end of the year - - -   -    

Exercisable at the end of the year - - -   -     

Long Term Share Incentive scheme:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 1,159,352 -   1,273,879  

Forfeited during the year - (350,413) -   (87,915)

Exercised during the year - (187,497) -   (799,015)

Granted during the year - 440,830 -   772,403 

Outstanding at the end of the year - 1,062,272 -   1,159,352 

Exercisable at the end of the year - 58,788 - 99,795

Save As You Earn scheme:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year £2.79 1,009,899 £2.25 1,191,005 

Forfeited during the year (£3.27) (169,261) (£2.53) (92,120)

Exercised during the year (£2.39) (272,324) (£1.72) (392,356)

Granted during the year £5.02 252,447 £3.46 303,370  

Outstanding at the end of the year £3.51 820,761 £2.79 1,009,899  

Exercisable at the end of the year £2.08 674 -   -   

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised during the year was £6.56 (2006: £4.32).

The options outstanding at 30 June 2007 had a range of exercise prices of £nil to £5.02 (2006: £nil to £3.46) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 5.6 years (2006: 5.6 years).

The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on best estimates, to reflect exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. 

The charge to income in relation to equity settled share-based payments in the year is £0.8m (2006: £nil).
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e. Retirement benefit schemes

The Redrow Staff Pension Scheme (the “Scheme”) comprises two sections: a funded, self-administered, defined benefits section and a
funded defined contribution section, the former of which is contracted out of the State Earnings Related Pensions Scheme. 

The total pension credit for the year was £2.5m (2006: charge of £6.9m) £4.1m of which related to the defined benefit section of the
scheme (2006: charge of £5.7m), with £1.7m being charged to the income statement (2006: £2.9m) and £5.8m being credited to the
statement of recognised income and expense (2006: charge of £2.8m). The charge arising from the defined contribution section was
£1.6m (2006: £1.2m).

Triennial valuation 
A full independent triennial actuarial valuation of the defined benefit section of the Scheme was undertaken at 1 July 2005. The method
used was the Projected Unit Method. The main assumptions were an investment return of 4.89% per annum compound, salary increase
of 5.7% per annum compound, and mortality in accordance with the PA92 series of tables. In the opinion of the Actuary, there was a
deficit of £11.5m in the defined benefit section of the Scheme, with the value of the Scheme’s assets representing 78% of the Scheme’s
liabilities. As at 1 July 2005 the value of the defined benefit section of the Scheme’s assets was £41.5m. The previous triennial valuation
was undertaken as at 1 January 2003 and reported a deficit of £2.2m. The pension scheme year end was amended subsequent to 
1 January 2003 to coincide with the Group’s year end of 30 June.

Defined Benefit Scheme – IAS 19 valuation
Redrow has elected to adopt the December 2004 amendments to IAS 19 as encouraged by the IASB. In particular, Redrow has adopted a
policy of recognising all actuarial gains and losses for its defined benefit plan in the period in which they occur, outside the income
statement, in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense.

This disclosure relates to the defined benefit section of the Scheme. The Scheme’s assets are held separately from the assets of Redrow
and are administered by the trustees and managed professionally.

The latest formal actuarial valuation of the defined benefit section was carried out at 1 July 2005. This valuation has been updated to 
30 June 2007 by a qualified actuary for the purposes of these accounts.

Company contributions for the 12 months ending June 2008 are expected to be approximately £2.6m.
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The major financial assumptions used in arriving at the IAS 19 valuation were:

2007 2006

Long-term rate of increase in pensionable salaries 6.5% 6.1%

Rate of increase of benefits in payment (lesser of 5% per annum and RPI)1 3.4% 3.0%

Rate of increase of benefits in payment (lesser of 2.5% per annum and RPI)2 2.3% 2.2%

Discount rate 5.9% 5.2%

Inflation assumption 3.5% 3.1%

Expected return on assets 7.1% 6.8%

1 In respect of pensions in excess of the guaranteed minimum pension earned prior to 30 June 2006
2 In respect of pensions in excess of the guaranteed minimum pension earned after 30 June 2006. Other pension increases are valued in 

a consistent manner.

The expected return on assets assumption has been derived by considering the appropriate return for each of the main asset classes listed
below. The yields assumed on bond type investments are based on published redemption yields at the balance sheet date. The assumed
return on equities and property reflects an assumed allowance for the out-performance of these asset classes over UK Government bonds
in the long term. The rates of return are shown net of investment manager expenses.

The mortality tables used in the actuarial valuation were (making allowance for projected further improvements in mortality):

For male members: PMA92C2020 (adjusted for projected further improvements in mortality)
For female members: PFA92C2020 (adjusted for projected further improvements in mortality)

The life expectancies implied by these tables for typical members are:

Pensioner currently aged 70: Male 15.6 years Female 18.4 years
Future pensioner when aged 65: Male 19.8 years Female 22.8 years

It has been assumed that all members will commute part of their pension in return for a tax free cash sum on retirement in accordance
with pre-April 2006 limits.
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The total assets, the split between the major asset classes in the Scheme, the present value of the Schemes’ liabilities, and the amounts
recognised in the balance sheet are shown below:

The Group and Company
2007 2006

£m £m

Equities (excluding shares held in Redrow plc) 32.2 38.6

Property 6.8 -

Gilts 23.4 10.0

High yield bonds 6.7 -

Redrow plc shares 1.3 1.2

Cash 0.4 3.3

Insurance policies 1.5 1.5

Total market value of assets 72.3 54.6

Present value of obligations (66.2) (63.2)

Surplus/(deficit) in the Scheme 6.1 (8.6)

The total amounts credited/(charged) against income in the year were as follows:
The Group and Company
2007 2006

£m £m

Amounts included within the income statement:

Periodic operating costs

Current service cost (2.4) (3.0)

Financing costs

Expected return on assets 4.1 2.6

Interest cost (3.4) (2.5)

(1.7) (2.9)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense/(SORIE):

Actuarial gains/(losses) 5.8 (2.8)

4.1 (5.7)

Cumulative amount of gains and (losses) recognised in the SORIE since 1 July 2004 3.7 (2.1)
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the surplus/(deficit) in respect of the Group’s defined benefit section is as follows:

The Group and Company
2007 2006

£m £m

Balance sheet surplus/(deficit)

At start of year (8.6) (7.9)

Amounts credited/(charged) against recognised income and expense 4.1 (5.7)

Employer contributions paid 10.6 5.0

At end of year 6.1 (8.6)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

At start of year 63.2 49.6

Current service cost 2.4 3.0

Past service cost - -

Interest cost 3.4 2.5

Member contributions 1.6 1.0

Benefit payments, group life insurance death in service

premiums and administration costs (0.8) (0.7)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities (3.6) 7.8

At end of year 66.2 63.2

Changes in the fair value of the Scheme’s assets:

At start of year 54.6 41.7

Special contributions 8.0 3.0

Normal employer contributions 2.6 2.0

Member contributions 1.6 1.0

Expected return on assets 4.1 2.6

Benefit payments, group life insurance death in service

premiums and administration costs (0.8) (0.7)

Actuarial gain on assets 2.2 5.0

At end of year 72.3 54.6

The actual return on the plan assets was £6.3m (2006: £7.6m).

A three year history of experience adjustments is set out below:
2007 2006 2005

Present value of defined benefit obligation (£m) 66.2 63.2 49.6

Present value of Scheme assets (£m) 72.3 54.6 41.7

Scheme surplus/(deficit) (£m) 6.1 (8.6) (7.9)

Experience adjustments on Scheme liabilities over the year (£m)

excluding change in assumptions - (0.9) 2.5

Percentage of Scheme liabilities - 1.4% 5.0%

Experience gain on Scheme assets over the year (£m) 2.2 5.0 3.5

Percentage of Scheme assets 3.0% 9.2% 8.4%
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Note 8. Intangible assets

Group Software
£m

Cost

At 1 July 2005 0.8 

Additions 0.3

At 30 June 2006 1.1

Additions 0.1

At 30 June 2007 1.2

Amortisation

At 1 July 2005 0.6

Charge 0.1

At 30 June 2006 0.7

Charge 0.2

At 30 June 2007 0.9

Net book value

At 30 June 2007 0.3

At 30 June 2006 0.4

Note 9. Plant, property and equipment

Group Freehold and long  Plant & Fixtures &
leasehold property machinery fittings Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation

At 1 July 2005 19.5 6.7 6.3 32.5

Additions 0.3 1.0 0.6 1.9

Disposals - (0.2) (1.9) (2.1)

At 30 June 2006 19.8 7.5 5.0 32.3

Additions 4.0 0.1 1.0 5.1

Disposals (1.0) (3.0) (0.1) (4.1)

At 30 June 2007 22.8 4.6 5.9 33.3

Depreciation

At 1 July 2005 1.7 2.1 4.6 8.4

Charge 0.4 0.8 1.0 2.2

Disposals - (0.1) (2.0) (2.1)

At 30 June 2006 2.1 2.8 3.6 8.5

Charge 0.4 0.8 0.9 2.1

Disposals (0.1) (1.7) (0.1) (1.9)

At 30 June 2007 2.4 1.9 4.4 8.7

Net book value

At 30 June 2007 20.4 2.7 1.5 24.6

At 30 June 2006 17.7 4.7 1.4 23.8

Long leasehold property with more than 50 years unexpired comprised £1.6m at net book value.
Freehold property includes £1.0m at net book value currently held for resale.
There was £nil of capital expenditure contracted at 30 June 2007 (2006: £3.8m).
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Note 10. Investments
a. Investments The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Joint ventures 3.7 2.4 - -   

Subsidiary companies - -   30.7 30.7 

3.7 2.4 30.7 30.7 

b. Investments in joint ventures The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m

Share of joint venture net assets:

Current assets 9.7 4.7 - -

Current liabilities (8.7) (3.2) - -

Non-current liabilities (0.5) (0.3)    - -

Net assets 0.5 1.2  - -

Loans from Group companies 3.2 1.2  - -

3.7 2.4  - -

Share of post-tax losses from joint ventures:

Revenue 3.9 3.5 - -

Cost of sales (4.2) (3.8) - -

Gross profit (0.3) (0.3) - -

Administrative expenses (0.7) (0.8) - -

Operating loss (1.0) (1.1) - -

Finance costs (0.2) - - -

Loss before tax (1.2) (1.1) - -

Taxation 0.4 0.3 - -

(0.8) (0.8) - -

The Group has a 50% shareholding in the ordinary share capital of Framing Solutions plc, a company incorporated in Great Britain with
a 31 December year end. The remaining shares are held by Corus plc. Framing Solutions plc undertakes the production and development
of lightweight steel frames for use within the housebuilding industry. As at 30 June 2007, Framing Solutions plc was financed by share
capital, its own independent banking facilities and loans from Redrow and Corus.

The Group also has a 50% shareholding in the ordinary share capital of The Waterford Park Company Limited, a company incorporated
in Great Britain with a 30 June year end. The remaining shares are held by Denrock Associates Limited. The Waterford Park Company
Limited was formed to pursue the potential redevelopment of Watford Junction railway station.
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c. Investments in subsidiary undertakings The Company
£m

At 1 July 2006 and 30 June 2007 30.7

The principal subsidiary companies are detailed on page 5. All are incorporated in Great Britain except Redrow Homes (Park Heights)
Limited which is incorporated in Jersey. A full list of subsidiary undertakings as at 30 June 2007 will be appended to the Company’s next
annual return. The capital of all the subsidiary companies, consisting of ordinary shares, is wholly owned. Redrow Holdings Ltd, Redrow
Corporate Services Ltd and Redrow Group Services Ltd are directly owned by Redrow plc.

In the opinion of the Directors the value of the Company’s investment in subsidiary undertakings is not less than the amount at which it
is stated in the Balance Sheet.

Note 11. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and the movements thereon during the current and prior
year:

The Group Short term
Employee Imputed Hedge Share-based temporary

benefits interest reserve payment differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deferred tax assets

At 1 July 2005 2.6 1.9 0.1 0.2 3.3 8.1

(Charge)/credit to income (0.6) 0.1 - - (3.3) (3.8)

Credit/(charge) to equity 0.8 - (0.1) - - 0.7

At 1 July 2006 2.8 2.0 - 0.2 - 5.0

(Charge)/credit to income (0.9) (0.1) - - 1.0 -

Credit/(charge) to equity (1.7) - - 0.1 - (1.6)

At 30 June 2007 0.2 1.9 - 0.3 1.0 3.4

Short term
Employee Imputed Hedge Share-based temporary

benefits interest reserve payment differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 July 2005 - - - - (1.8) (1.8)

Credit to income - - - - 0.4 0.4

Charge to equity - - (0.1) - (0.1) (0.2)

At 1 July 2006 - - (0.1) - (1.5) (1.6)

(Charge)/credit to income (1.7) - - - 0.7 (1.0)

Charge to equity - - (0.4) - - (0.4)

At 30 June 2007 (1.7) - (0.5) - (0.8) (3.0)

The deferred tax balances in the Company relate to a deferred tax asset arising on retirement benefit obligations of £1.6m (2006: £3.7m)
and a deferred tax liability arising on the hedge reserve of £0.5m (2006: £0.1m).



Notes to the financial statements     75

Note 12. Trade and other receivables
The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Non-current assets

Trade receivables 3.8 0.6 - -

Other receivables 0.3 0.2 - -   

4.1 0.8 - -

Current assets

Trade receivables 17.8 6.7 - -

Amounts due from subsidiary companies - - 398.0 294.7 

Other receivables 6.8 16.8 - -

Prepayments and accrued income 3.9 2.0 0.1 0.1 

28.5 25.5 398.1 294.8

Note 13. Inventories
The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Land for development 641.4 523.0 - -

Work in progress 349.1 329.8 - -

Stock of showhomes 14.2 14.2 -

1,004.7 867.0 - -

Payments on account (16.0) (17.4) - - 

988.7 849.6 - -

Inventories of £589.9m were recognised as expenses in the year (2006: £560.0m).

Work in progress includes £9.8m (2006: £6.6m) in respect of part exchange properties.

Land held for development in the sum of £47.9m is subject to a legal charge as security in respect of deferred consideration (2006: £38.7m).
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Note 14. Cash, bank overdrafts, loans and derivative financial instruments

Financial instrument disclosures are set out below. Amounts due in respect of development land are discussed separately within this note:

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m

Non-current assets

Derivative financial instruments - interest rate cash flow hedges 0.6 0.2 0.6 0.2

0.6 0.2 0.6 0.2

Current assets

Derivative financial instruments - interest rate cash flow hedges 1.1 0.2 1.1 0.2

Cash and cash equivalents 12.2 24.5 11.5 23.1

13.3 24.7 12.6 23.3

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans net of issue costs (169.7) (131.5) (169.7) (131.5)

(169.7) (131.5) (169.7) (131.5)

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts (20.1) (22.8) (61.1) (15.4)

(20.1) (22.8) (61.1) (15.4)

Interest bearing cash, derivatives and borrowings (175.9) (129.4) (217.6) (123.4)

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdrafts, and items such as trade and other receivables/payables and
interest rate swaps which arise during the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Chief Executive and Finance Director’s business review on pages 26 to 27 provides an overview of the Group’s financial and risk
management treasury policies. 

It remains the Group’s policy not to trade in financial instruments, nor does it permit any foreign currency transactions.

a. Interest rate and liquidity risk

At 30 June 2007, the Group had total unsecured bank borrowing facilities of £440.0m, representing £400.0m committed facilities and
£40.0m uncommitted facilities.

In order to manage its interest rate risk, the Group may enter into interest rate swaps, options and forward rate agreements. All interest
rate exposures are sterling denominated. The principal sums, draw down and maturity dates are arranged so as to match those of the
borrowings to which the swaps relate.

The following table shows the profile of interest bearing debt together with its effective interest rates, after taking account of interest rate
swaps as at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they will reprice:

2007 2006

Effective Total 0-1 1-2 2-5 Effective Total 0-1 1-2 2-5
interest year years years interest year years years

rate rate
% £m £m £m £m % £m £m £m £m

Bank overdraft 6.5 (20.1) (20.1) - - 5.5 (22.8) (22.8) - -   

Bank loans - fixed rate 5.6 (100.0) (37.5) (25.0) (37.5) 4.7 (62.5) - (37.5) (25.0)

Bank loans - floating rate 6.4 (70.0) - - (70.0) 5.1 (69.5) - - (69.5)   

(190.1) (57.6) (25.0) (107.5) (154.8) (22.8) (37.5) (94.5)
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b. Maturity of bank loans and borrowings

The maturity of bank loans and borrowings is as below:

The Group Bank overdraft Bank loans Bank overdraft Bank loans
2007 2007 2006 2006

£m £m £m £m

Due within one year 20.1 - 22.8 -  

Due between one and two years - - -   -   

Due between two and five years - 170.0 -   132.0 

20.1 170.0 22.8   132.0 

The Company Bank overdraft Bank loans Bank overdraft Bank loans
2007 2007 2006 2006

£m £m £m £m

Due within one year 61.1 - 15.4 -  

Due between one and two years - - -   -   

Due between two and five years - 170.0 -   132.0 

61.1 170.0 15.4 132.0 

At the year end, the Group and Company had £230.0m (2006: £168.0m) of undrawn committed bank facilities available.

c. Amounts due in respect of development land

The Group’s policy permits land purchases to be made on deferred payment terms. In accordance with IAS 39, the deferred creditor is
recorded at fair value using the effective interest method. The difference between the fair value and nominal value is amortised over the
deferment period via financing costs, increasing the land creditor to its full cash settlement value on the payment date.

The interest rate used for each deferred payment is an equivalent loan rate available on the date of the land purchase, as applicable to a
loan lasting for a comparable period to that of the deferment.

The maturity profile of amounts due in respect of development land is as below:
The Group

2007 2006
£m £m

Due within one year 75.4 36.4  

Due between one and two years 29.9  18.5  

Due between two and five years 18.9 23.4

124.2 78.3 

d. Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is mainly attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are stated after adjusting
for any doubtful receivables, based on the judgement of the Group’s management through using both previous experience and knowledge of
the current position of its debtors.

There is no specific concentration of credit risk as exposure is spread over a number of customers.

e. Fair values

At 30 June 2007 there is no material difference between the fair value of financial instruments and their carrying values as shown in the
balance sheet.
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Note 15. Trade and other payables
The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Non-current liabilities

Amounts due in respect of development land 48.8 41.9 - - 

48.8 41.9 - -   

Current liabilities

Trade payables 121.8 115.8 - -   

Amounts due in respect of development land 75.4 36.4 - -   

Amounts owed to subsidiary companies - -   16.2 4.8

Other creditors 4.8 8.0 - -   

Other taxation and social security 3.0 2.4 - -   

Accruals and deferred income 28.8 28.8 5.6 3.9

233.8 191.4 21.8 8.7

£5.8m of current trade payables has been reclassified in prior year comparatives from current income tax liabilities and the Group cash 
flow statement adjusted accordingly.

Note 16. Long-term provisions

The Group Total

£m

At 1 July 2006 4.4

Provisions made during the year 1.1

Provisions released during the year (1.3)

Provisions used during the year (0.8)

At 30 June 2007 3.4

Provisions made during the year relate to maintenance and sundry remedial costs in respect of the Homes activities, which it is assessed
will be utilised within four years.

Note 17. Share capital
2007 2006

£m £m

Authorised

330,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each (2006: 330,000,000) 33.0 33.0

Alloted, called up and fully paid 16.0 16.0

Number of ordinary
shares of 10p each 

Movement in the year was as follows:

At 1 July 2006 159,554,715

Share options exercised 272,324

At 30 June 2007 159,827,039

Options granted to Directors and employees under the Executive Share Option scheme, the Long Term Share Incentive Plan and the
Save As You Earn schemes are set out in Note 7d.
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Note 18. Share capital, share premium account and reserves
Share

Share premium Hedge Other Retained
capital account reserve reserves Earnings

The Group £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2005 15.9 54.2 (0.1) 7.9 374.6

Total recognised income and expense - - 0.4 - 82.1

Shares issued 0.1 2.0 - - -   

Dividends paid - - - - (18.4)

Debit in respect of LTSIP - - - - (3.6)

Contribution to QUEST - - - - (1.3)

At 30 June 2006 16.0 56.2 0.3 7.9 433.4 

Total recognised income and expense - - 0.9 - 88.5

Shares issued - 1.9 - - -

Dividends paid - - - - (26.3)

Share-based payment - - - - 0.1

Credit in respect of LTSIP - - - - 0.2

Contribution to QUEST - - - - (1.3)

At 30 June 2007 16.0 58.1 1.2 7.9 494.6

Hedge reserve
The hedge reserve comprises the effective portion of the gain or loss arising from the fair value of cash flow hedging transactions entered
into by the Group that have not yet crystalised.

Other reserves 
Other reserves consists of a £7.0m Capital Redemption reserve (2006: £7.0m) and a £0.9m Consolidation Reserve (2006: £0.9m). 

Undistributable reserves
The hedge reserve and other reserves are not available for distribution.

Share
Share premium Hedge Other Retained

capital account reserve reserves Earnings
The Company £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2005 15.9 54.1 (0.1) 7.0 84.6

Total recognised income and expense - - 0.4 - 2.2

Shares issued 0.1 2.0 - - - 

Dividends paid - - - - (18.4)

Dividends received from subsidiary companies - - - - 31.5 

At 30 June 2006 16.0 56.1 0.3 7.0 99.9 

Total recognised income and expense - - 0.9 - 8.6

Shares issued - 1.9 - - -

Dividends paid - - - - (26.3)

Dividends received from subsidiary companies - - - - 32.0

At 30 June 2007 16.0 58.0 1.2 7.0 114.2

Hedge reserve
The hedge reserve comprises the effective portion of the gain or loss arising from the fair value of cash flow hedging transactions entered
into by the Company that have not yet crystalised.

Other reserves 
Other reserves consists of a £7.0m Capital Redemption reserve (2006: £7.0m).

Undistributable reserves
The hedge reserve and other reserves are not available for distribution.
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Note 19. Reconciliation of movements in equity
The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Profit for the period 84.4 84.1 4.5 4.2

Dividends on equity shares (26.3) (18.4) 5.7 13.1

Other recognised income and expense relating to the period (net) 5.0 (1.6) 5.0 (1.6)

Shares issued 1.9 2.1 1.9 2.1

Share-based payment 0.1 - - -

Movement in LTSIP/SAYE (1.1) (4.9) - -

Net increase in equity 64.0 61.3 17.1 17.8

Opening equity 513.8 452.5 179.3 161.5

Closing equity 577.8 513.8 196.4 179.3

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of Redrow plc is not presented as a part of these
financial statements.

The consolidated profit on ordinary activities after taxation for the financial year, excluding intra-Group dividends, is made up as follows:

2007 2006
£m £m

Holding company 4.5 4.2

Subsidiary companies 79.9 79.9

84.4 84.1 

Note 20. Movement in net (debt)/cash

At Net At
1 July Cash Other movement 30 June
2006 flow movements in the year 2007

The Group £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 24.5 (15.6) 3.3 (12.3) 12.2

Bank overdrafts (22.8) 2.7 - 2.7 (20.1)

1.7 (12.9) 3.3 (9.6) (7.9)

Bank loans (132.0) (38.0) - (38.0) (170.0)

Issue costs 0.5 - (0.2) (0.2) 0.3

(129.8) (50.9) 3.1 (47.8) (177.6)

At Net At
1 July Cash Other movement 30 June
2006 flow movements in the year 2007

The Company £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 23.1 (18.2) 6.6 (11.6) 11.5

Bank overdrafts (15.4) (45.7) - (45.7) (61.1)

7.7 (63.9) 6.6 (57.3) (49.6)

Bank loans (132.0) (38.0) - (38.0) (170.0)

Issue costs 0.5 - (0.2) (0.2) 0.3

(123.8) (101.9) 6.4 (95.5) (219.3)

Other movements comprise amortisation of issue costs, imputed interest on deferred land creditors, actuarial losses on the pension
scheme and the movement in fair value of interest rate cash flow hedges.
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Note 21. Operating lease total commitments
Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other

2007 2007 2006 2006
£m £m £m £m

Expiring in under one year - 0.2 - 0.2 

Expiring in one to two years - 0.8 - 0.8 

Expiring in two to five years 0.2 1.1 0.4 0.7 

Expiring after five years - - - -

Note 22. Contingent liabilities

The Company has guaranteed the bank borrowings of its subsidiaries. Performance bonds, financial guarantees in respect of certain
deferred land creditors and other building or performance guarantees have been entered into in the normal course of business.

Note 23. Related party transactions

Within the definition of IAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures), the Board and key management personnel are related parties. Detailed
disclosure of the remuneration of the Board is given in the Remuneration report on pages 42 to 49. A summary of transactions with key
management personnel is provided in Note 7c. There have been no other material transactions with key management personnel. There is
no difference between transactions with key management personnel of the Company and the Group.  

The Company funds the operating companies through both equity investment and loans at commercial rates of interest. In addition, the
Company provides its subsidiaries with the services of Senior Management, for which a recharge is made to those subsidiary companies
based upon utilisation of services.

The amount outstanding from subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2007 was £398.0m (2006: £294.7m). The amount owed to subsidiary
undertakings at 30 June 2007 was £16.2m (2006: £4.8m).

The Company provides the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme, as detailed in note 7e. Expected service costs are charged to the
operating businesses at cost. There is no contractual arrangement or stated policy relating to the charge. Experience and actuarial gains
are recognised in the Company, via the statement of recognised income and expense.

The Group undertook transactions with its Framing Solutions joint venture in the normal course of business during the year. This
consisted of the purchase of lightweight steel frames totalling £5.5m (2006: £6.3m). At the end of the year, the balance owed to Framing
Solutions by the Group was £1.2m (2006: £1.9m). The Group did not undertake any transactions with The Waterford Company Limited
joint venture. The Group’s loans to its joint ventures are disclosed in Note 10.

Note 24. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management consider the key sources of estimation uncertainty
and critical accounting judgements relate to:

Carrying value of land held for development and work in progress
The Group carries inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value less cash on account. Due to development timescales, it is
necessary to estimate costs to complete and future revenues and to allocate non unit specific development costs between units legally
completing in the current financial year and in future periods.

Pensions
The Group has utilised assumptions including a rate of return on assets, mortality assumptions and a discount rate having been advised by
its actuary. To the extent that such assumed rates are different from what actually transpires, the retirement benefit obligations of the
Group would change.
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Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of Redrow
plc will be held at St David’s Park Hotel, St. David’s Park,
Flintshire on Wednesday 7 November 2007 at 12 noon for the
following purposes. All resolutions will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions except numbers 11, 12 and 13 which will be proposed
as special resolutions.

Ordinary business
Resolution 1 - Annual Report and Accounts
To receive and adopt the Directors’ report and the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2007, together with the
Auditors’ report.

Resolution 2 - Dividend
To declare a final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2007.

Resolution 3 - Re-appointment of director
To re-appoint John Tutte as a director.

Resolution 4 - Re-appointment of director
To re-appoint Alan Bowkett as a director.

Resolution 5 - Re-appointment of director
To re-appoint Bob Bennett as a director.

Resolution 6 - Re-appointment of director
To re-appoint Denise Jagger as a director.

Resolution 7 - Re-appointment of director
To re-appoint Malcolm King as a director.

Resolution 8 - Re-appointment of Auditors
To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as external Auditors
to the Company, to hold office until the end of the next general
meeting at which financial statements are laid before the
Company and to authorise the directors to fix their remuneration.

Special business
Resolution 9 - Remuneration report
To approve the remuneration report for the year ended 30 June
2007.

Resolution 10 - Authority to allot shares
That the directors, in place of any existing authority conferred
upon them for the purpose of section 80 of the Companies Act
1985, be generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to
section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 to exercise all powers of
the Company to allot and to make offers or agreements to allot
relevant securities (as defined in section 80 of the said Act) up to
an aggregate nominal amount of £5,327,568 provided that this
authority shall (unless previously revoked or renewed) expire on
the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company but
so that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or
agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot relevant
securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the
authority had not expired.

Resolution 11 - Authority to disapply pre-emption rights
That, subject to the passing of Resolution 10 as set out in the
Notice convening the annual general meeting at which this
resolution is to be considered and in place of any existing
authority given pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act
1985, the directors be given power pursuant to section 95 of the
Companies Act 1985 to make allotments of equity securities (as
defined in section 94 of the said Act) pursuant to the authority
contained in the said Resolution 10 and to sell shares which are
held in treasury wholly for cash as if section 89(1) of the said Act
did not apply to such allotments or sale provided that this power
shall be limited to:

(i) allotments of equity securities in connection with a rights
issue, being an offer of equity securities by way of rights to
ordinary shareholders of the Company in proportion (as nearly
as may be) to their holdings subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal or
practical problems under the laws of or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or stock exchange in any
territory; and

(ii) any other allotments for cash or equity securities or sale of
shares held in treasury up to a maximum nominal amount of
£799,135 and shall (unless previously revoked or renewed)
expire on the date which is the earlier of the next annual
general meeting of the Company or 6 February 2009 save that
the said power shall permit the Company to make an offer or
enter into an agreement before the expiry of such power which
would or might require equity securities to be allotted after
such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities in
pursuance of such offer or agreement as if such power
conferred had not expired.

Resolution 12 - Authority to purchase own shares
That, pursuant to Article 11 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Company is generally and unconditionally
authorised, in accordance with section 166 of the Companies Act
1985, to make market purchases (within the meaning of section
163(3) of the said Act) of ordinary shares of 10p each in the
capital of the Company (“ordinary shares”), and that where such
shares are held in treasury, the Company may use them for the
purposes of its employees’ share schemes, provided that:

(a) the maximum number of ordinary shares authorised to be
purchased is 15,982,704;

(b) the minimum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is
10p exclusive of expenses payable by the Company;

(c) the maximum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is
an amount equal to (i) 105% of the average of the middle
market quotations for an ordinary share derived from the
London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which the
ordinary share is purchased (exclusive of expenses payable by
the Company); and (ii) that stipulated by Article 5(i) of the
Buy-back and Stabilisation Regulation (EC 2273/2003); and 
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(d) the authority conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company (or 6 February
2009 whichever may be the earlier) except that the Company
may before such expiry make a contract to purchase its own
shares which will or may be completed or executed wholly or
partly after such expiry.

Resolution 13 - Electronic communications and related changes
to the Articles of Association
That:
a) the company be authorised, subject to and in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the new
Articles of Association, to send, convey or supply all types of
notices, documents, or information to the members by means
of electronic equipment for the processing (including digital
compression), storage and transmission of data, employing
wires, radio optical technologies, or any other electromagnetic
means, including by making such notices, documents or
information available on a website; and

b) new Articles of Association be adopted as set out in the form
produced to the meeting, and initialled by the Chairman for
the purposes of identification in substitution for and to the
exclusion of all existing Articles of Association of the
Company.

10 September 2007 By order of the Board

Registered office:
Redrow House Graham Cope
St. David’s Park Company Secretary
Flintshire
CH5 3RX
Registered in England No. 2877315

Notes:
(i) A shareholder entitled to attend and vote may appoint a

proxy or proxies to attend, speak and vote instead of him. 
A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member
may appoint more than one proxy, provided that each proxy
is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different
share or shares held by him.

A form of proxy is enclosed which, if required, should be
completed in accordance with the instructions set out therein
and returned so as to reach the Company’s Registrars not later
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting or any
adjourned meeting. Completion of a form of proxy will not
preclude a shareholder from attending and voting at the
meeting in person if they so wish.

(ii) All shareholders on the Register at 6pm on 5 November 2007
and only those shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting in respect of the number of shares
registered in their respective names at that time. Changes to
entries on the Register after that time will be disregarded in
determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the
meeting.

(iii) Copies of the directors’ service contracts will be available for
inspection at the registered office during normal business
hours on any business day and at the place of the annual
general meeting for at least 15 minutes before the meeting is
held until its conclusion.

(iv) The register of directors’ interests in the share capital of the
Company will be available for inspection at the place of the
meeting from 12 noon on 7 November 2007 until the
conclusion of the meeting. None of the directors has a service
contract which cannot be terminated within one year without
payment of compensation.

(v) If you have any questions about the meeting or need any
special assistance at the meeting, please contact the Company
Secretary at the registered office or telephone 01244 520044
during normal business hours.
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Explanatory notes to Annual General Meeting resolutions:
Resolution 2 - Dividend
Subject to approval at the meeting, the dividend will be paid on
16 November 2007 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 21 September 2007.

Resolution 3-7 - Re-appointment of directors
The Company’s articles of association require that each director
shall retire from office at the third annual general meeting after
the annual general meeting at which he was last elected or, in the
case of a new director, to seek re-election at the first annual
general meeting following appointment.

Resolution 8 - Re-appointment of Auditors
The Company is required to appoint Auditors at every general
meeting at which the accounts are presented to shareholders.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed at last year’s annual
general meeting and are willing to seek re-appointment this year.
It is normal practice for a Company’s directors to be authorised to
agree the Auditors’ fees. If this resolution is passed, the Audit
Committee will approve the fees for recommendation to the
Board.

Resolution 9 - Remuneration report
Under the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002) companies are required
to ask shareholders to vote on the Remuneration report. The
report is contained on pages 42 to 49 of the Report and Accounts.

Resolution 10 - Authority to allot shares
Shareholders are being invited to renew the authority given to
directors in previous years to allot unissued shares. If passed,
resolution 10 would renew this authority by authorising the
directors to allot shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£5,327,568. 

The authority will expire on the date of the next annual general
meeting of the Company. This represents 53,275,680 ordinary
shares of 10p each and is equivalent to approximately 33% of the
Company’s current issued ordinary share capital.

Resolution 11 - Authority to disapply pre-emption rights
The directors may only allot shares for cash to persons who are not
already shareholders in the Company if authorised to do so by the
shareholders in a general meeting. This resolution renews
authority for the directors to allot shares for cash without first
offering them to existing members up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £799,135. This sum represents 7,991,352 ordinary
shares of 10p each, being equivalent to approximately 5% of the
Company’s current issued share capital. The resolution also
enables the directors to modify the strict requirements for a rights
issue in circumstances where they consider it necessary or
expedient.

In addition, if the Company has purchased its own shares and
holds them in treasury, this resolution would give the directors
power to sell these shares for cash to persons other than existing
shareholders, subject to the same limit that would apply to issues
of shares for cash to these persons.

The authority will expire on whichever is the earlier of the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting or 6 February 2009.

Resolution 12 - Authority to purchase own shares
The directors are seeking authority as in previous years, to make
market purchases of the Company’s shares.

The proposed authority would be limited by the terms of the
special resolution to the purchases of 15,982,704 shares, an
aggregate nominal value of £1,598,270 which is equivalent to 10%
of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 30 June 2007.

In the past, such shares would have been cancelled immediately.
However, The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury
Shares) Regulations 2003 which came into effect on 1 December
2003 allows companies to hold shares acquired by way of market
purchase as treasury stock, rather than having to cancel them.
Such shares can subsequently be cancelled, sold for cash or used
pursuant to the Company’s employee share schemes.

The ability to hold in treasury shares that the Company purchases
pursuant to the authority conferred by this resolution would give
the Company the ability to re-issue treasury shares quickly and
cost-effectively, and would provide the Company with additional
flexibility in the management of its capital base. Shareholders
should note that this resolution explicitly authorises the Company
to use any shares purchased and held in treasury for the purposes
of the Company’s employee share schemes. If any shares were used
in this way, the Company would take them into account when
calculating the share issuing limits in the schemes, as long as
required under the Guidelines of the Association of British
Insurers.

Details of any shares purchased pursuant to the proposed authority
would be notified to the London Stock Exchange by 7.30am on
the business day following the purchase and to the Registrar of
Companies within 28 days. Details would also be included in the
Company’s Annual Report and Accounts in respect of the
financial period in which any such purchases take place.
The authority set out in the special resolution will expire on
whichever is the earlier of the end of the next annual general
meeting or 6 February 2009 and the resolution specifies the
maximum and minimum prices at which the shares may be
bought. Other investment opportunities, appropriate gearing levels
and the overall financial position of the Company will be taken
into account before deciding upon the course of action.

The directors would exercise this authority only if they felt it
would be in the best interests of the Company to do so and would
increase earnings per share. To the extent that any such shares
were held in treasury, earnings per share would only be increased
on a temporary basis, until the shares were transferred out of
treasury.
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Resolution 13 - Electronic communications and related changes
to the Articles of Association
Resolution 13 is a special resolution to seek general authority from
shareholders for the Company to send or supply documents or
information to shareholders in electronic form or by means of a
website, so taking advantage of new company legislation regarding
electronic communications with shareholders, which became
effective on 20 January 2007.

Existing company legislation permits the Company to
communicate with shareholders electronically (e.g. by fax, email
or by means of a website) in respect of certain types of information
they receive from the Company. However, the new legislation
makes two important changes:

All Company notices, documents and other information
(“shareholder information”) can now be provided to
shareholders electronically, provided that they agree to this
and provide an appropriate (e.g. email) address; and

If shareholders are invited to agree that the Company may
send or supply shareholder information by means of a website,
those who do not respond by 6 December 2007 are deemed to
have agreed to the Company communicating shareholder
information to them by means of a website.

Where shareholders agree (or are deemed to have agreed) to
communication of shareholder information by means of a website,
shareholders must be notified of the availability of the relevant
document or information on the website, the address of the
website, the place on the website where it may be accessed and
how to access the document or information. This information will
be provided to shareholders by post or by email (if they have
provided the Company with an email address for this purpose).

Increased use of electronic communications will deliver significant
savings to the Company in terms of administration, printing and
postage costs. It will also speed up the communication of
information to shareholders in a convenient form, whilst at the
same time delivering significant environmental benefits through
reduced use of paper and of the energy required for its production
and distribution. 

Accordingly, Resolution 13 is being proposed to confer the
necessary authority on the Company.

The Company would like to take advantage of the new legislation
as early as possible.

You will find enclosed with this AGM Notice a letter from
Computershare entitled “Your communications - your choice” 
(the “Form”) which is an invitation to you to select the means you
prefer the Company to use to send you shareholder information.
Please read the information on the Form carefully. Subject to
Resolution 13 being passed at the AGM, the options available to
you are: 

a) To elect to receive communications from the Company via the
Company’s website, with notification of the availability of
shareholder information to your email address. To choose this
option, simply follow the steps described in Option A on the
Form; 

b) To elect to continue to receive paper copy documents. 
To choose this option, place a cross in the box under Option B
on the Form and return it in the pre-paid envelope; or 

c) Not to respond with an election under Options A or B
described above by 6 December 2007; in which case, you will
be deemed to have agreed to the communication of
shareholder information by means of a website and the
Company will, at the appropriate time, notify you in writing to
your registered address of the availability of shareholder
information on the Company’s website. 

The resolution also makes various changes to the Articles of
Association to reflect the new legislation on electronic
communications.

Summary of changes to the Articles of Association
The amendments to the Articles of Association that are proposed
to be adopted at the AGM by Resolution 13 reflect certain
provisions of the Companies Act 2006 (“CA 2006”) which have
been brought into force relating to electronic communications
between companies and their shareholders.

This summary of the proposed amendments has been prepared in
order to assist shareholders in understanding the rationale for and
substance of the proposed amendments. The number identifying
each Article, unless otherwise indicated, corresponds to the
numbering used in our current Articles of Association.

Articles 71 and new Articles 74A and 74B – Proxies 
The amendment in Article 2 to the definition of “writing” will
mean that under Article 71 the Company will be able to receive
appointments of proxies in electronic form subject to the
conditions or limitations which are specified in the notice of
meeting, Article 74, which sets out the form of the proxy has been
modified with the addition of new article 74A, which deals with
the procedure for authenticating proxy appointments, and new
article 74B which empowers the Board to permit electronic proxy
instructions sent by means of a relevant system to such participant
in that system acting on behalf of the Company as the Board may
prescribe.

Article 81 – Appointment and Retirement of Directors
The amendments to Article 81 deal with the authentication of
notice given to the Secretary of a member’s intention to propose a
person (other than a director at the general meeting for 
re-election) to the office of director and notice given to the
Secretary of the person to be proposed’s willingness to be elected.
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Article 127 – Proceedings of the Directors
The amendment in Article 2 to the definition of “writing” will
mean that under Article 127 the directors will be able to indicate
their assent to a resolution in writing by electronic means. The
amendments to Article 127 deal with the authentication of the
directors’ assent to such a resolution.

New Articles 154 to 160 – Service of Notices 
The new Articles 154 to 160 will permit the Company to send all
notices, documents and information by electronic means and/or by
making them available on a website, and the Company
Communications Provisions (as defined in section 1143 CA 2006)
shall apply to all such communications. Deemed notice provisions
replace the “default” statutory provisions, so that notices are
deemed to have been received: (i) where dispatched by post, 24
hours (or 48 hours where first class post is not used) after posting
(ii) where electronic means are used, 24 hours following
transmission: and (iii) in the case of website communications,
when material is made available on a website or, if later, on receipt
of notice of such availability.

New Articles 161 to 163 – Joint Holders 
New Article 161 has been added to override paragraph 16 of
Schedule 5 of CA 2006 and permit the Company to take to be
agreed or specified by all the joint shareholders of a share anything
which has been agreed or specified by the joint holder whose
name stands first in the Register in respect of the share.
New Article 162 reflects the position in Article 154 of the
previous Articles.

New Article 164 – Deceased and Bankrupt members
New Article 164 has been added to override paragraph 17 of
Schedule 5 of CA 2006 and entitle the Company to be supplied,
from someone claiming to be entitled to a share in consequence of
death or bankruptcy of a member or otherwise by operation of law,
with evidence to show that person’s title to the share and with an
address at which notices may be sent or supplied to such person,
whereupon that person will be entitled to have sent or supplied to
him at such address any notice, document or information.

New Article 169 – Signature or Authentication of Documents
Sent by Electronic Means
This Article is necessary to provide for sufficient authentication of
any notice or other document sent or supplied in electronic form
where the Articles require such notice or other document to be
signed or authenticated by any member or other person.

Documents available for your inspection
Copies of the existing Articles of Association, and a copy marked
up to show the differences between the existing Articles of
Association and the Articles of Association proposed to be
amended by Resolution 13 will be available for inspection during
normal business hours on Monday to Friday each week (public
holiday excepted) at the office of Linklaters LLP at One Silk
Street, London EC2Y 8HQ from the date of this document up to
and including the date of the annual general meeting and at the
place of the annual general meeting from 10.45am until the close
of the meeting.
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12 months ended 30 June IFRS IFRS IFRS UK GAAP UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

£m £m £m £m £m
# *

Turnover 795.7 770.1 780.4 669.9 607.9  

Operating profit before financing costs 136.6 132.8 154.0 132.7 113.7  

Operating profit before financing costs 

as a percentage of turnover 17.2% 17.2% 19.7% 19.8% 18.7% 

Profit before taxation 120.5 120.5 139.0 124.1 106.1  

Profit before taxation as a percentage of turnover 15.1% 15.6% 17.8% 18.5% 17.4%  

Net assets 577.8 513.8 452.5 376.6 302.0  

Net (debt) (177.6) (129.8) (103.2) (130.7) (93.2)  

Gearing – net (debt) as a 

percentage of capital and reserves 30.7% 25.3% 22.8% 34.7% 30.9%  

Return on capital employed – operating profit,  

adjusted for joint ventures, as a percentage of  

opening and closing capital employed 19.4% 22.0% 28.7% 29.4% 31.3%  

Number of legal completions 4,823 4,735 4,372 4,284 4,031  

Earnings per ordinary share 52.9p 52.9p 60.7p 54.8p 46.9p  

Dividends per ordinary share 15.6p 13.0p 10.8p 9.0p 7.5p  

Net assets per ordinary share 361.5p 322.0p 284.3p 237.1p 190.0p

# Restated in 2006 for IFRS 
* Restated in 2004 for impact of UITF 38 ‘Accounting for ESOP Trusts’
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Major House Builder of the Year
The Building Awards 2006
“Redrow has taken the Barker Review to heart, prioritising 
affordability, modern methods of construction and sustainability. 
It has imposed a legal framework to prevent Debut homes being
snapped up by investors and the range has achieved the BRE
EcoHomes rating of “excellent”. A winner on all counts.”

Best Volume House Builder - Silver
What House? Awards 2006
“First time buyers – the forgotten generation. Without starter
homes – as the name suggests – the market is going nowhere.
The volume house builders, with the turning circle of an oil
tanker not a speedboat, have for the most part been slow to
respond, which is why Redrow should be applauded for what the
company itself hails as its biggest achievement over the last 12
months. Redrow is a true all-rounder, responding to the needs of
the market across all sectors.”  

Overall House Builder of the Year
Your New Home Awards 2005
“The impact of Redrow’s affordable range of housing and clever
financial concept has dramatically altered the perception of
starter homes and has provided real hope for the masses of
eager buyers who once thought they were priced out of the
market. Redrow is a worthy winner and one that should be
congratulated for their efforts.”

TSC Marketplace Innovation Award - Highly Commended
Business in the Community Awards for Excellence 2007
Debut by Redrow

Best Website - Highly Commended 
Your New Home Awards 2006

Regional and Development Awards

Best Large Business 
Daily Post Achievement Wales Awards 2006

Best Residential Developer
West Midlands Business Insider Awards 2006
Redrow Homes (Midlands)

Residential Developer of the Year 
Liverpool Daily Post and Echo Property Awards 2006
Redrow Homes (North West) & Redrow Homes (Lancashire)

Architectural Review Future Project Award 2007
MIPIM (Marche Internationale des professionels de l’immobilier)
Barking Central, Barking Town Centre 

Sustainable Communities Award
Royal Town Planning Institute Awards 2007
Vision, as part of ‘Regenerating Devonport’ 

Housing Project of the Year
Mail on Sunday British Homes Awards 2007
Commendation for Vision @ Devonport

Best Apartment
London Evening Standard Property Awards 2007
The penthouse at The Boardwalk, Eastbourne

Sustainability Award
North Wales Built in Quality Awards 2007
Debut @ St David’s Park

Best Waterside Development - Highly Commended
Your New Home Awards 2006
The Boardwalk, Eastbourne

Best Starter Home - Gold
What House? Awards 2006
Debut @ Buckshaw Village, Chorley.

Best Sustainable Development - Silver
What House? Awards 2006
Debut @ Willans Green, Rugby

Best Exterior Design - Bronze
What House? Awards 2006
The Boardwalk, Eastbourne

Ecohomes Winner
BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental
Assessment Method) Award 2006 
Debut @ Willans Green, Rugby

Best Major Restoration
Gloucester City Council Civic Awards 2006
Collingwood Crescent, Gloucester

Welsh Housing Design Award
Royal Society of Architects in Wales Awards 2006
The Esplanade, Porthcawl

Best Townhouse
Birmingham Post House Design Awards 2006
The Edge, Dickens Heath, Solihull

Best Starter Home
Manchester Evening News Property Awards 2006
Debut @ Buckshaw Village, Chorley

Best Development for First Time Buyers
Your New Home Awards 2005
Debut @ Willans Green, Rugby

Best New Build Village
Your New Home Awards 2005
Buckshaw Village, Chorley

In recent years, Redrow has won an enviable number of national, regional
and development awards, recognising our achievements in terms of design,
innovation, sustainability initiatives, service quality and overall business
performance. We are justifiably proud of our successes.  

National Awards
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Affordable housing - properties targeted at or reserved for people
who are unable to compete effectively for existing market housing in
an area.
Average selling price (ASP) - the statistical average selling price of
properties ie. total price of homes sold divided by total number of
properties.
Barker Report - a Government sponsored review of housing supply in
the UK, undertaken on their behalf by Kate Barker and published in
March 2004, containing policy recommendations for improving the
functioning of the housing market. www.barkerreview.org.uk
Brownfield sites - brownfield land is another term for previously
developed land, or land that contains or contained a permanent
structure and associated infrastructure.
Buy to let - the practice of buying a property for investment purposes,
which is then rented out to a tenant. 
CABE (Commission for Architecture and the Built Environment) - the
Government’s advisor on architecture, urban design and public
space. 
Callcutt Report - Government sponsored review of housing delivery
chaired by John Callcutt and due to be published in autumn 2007.
CLG (Communities and Local Government) Policy - targeted at
providing well designed homes in high quality, mixed, thriving and
sustainable communities.
Consented land - land which has an outline or detailed planning
consent.
Current land - land owned by Redrow which has an outline or detailed
planning consent together with land controlled by Redrow, usually
under contract, where planning consent is being sought.
Development site - parcel of land which is being developed for
residential, commercial and/or mixed use. 
EcoHomes - an independent labelling scheme for housing
administered by the Building Research Establishment (BRE), which
assesses the environmental quality of a development.
English Partnerships - UK government’s national regeneration agency.
Exchange - when the customer has exchanged contracts to purchase
a Redrow home and has usually provided a deposit.
Forward land - land which is owned or controlled by Redrow, generally
under option, which is being promoted through the planning system
in order to ultimately achieve a planning consent.
Forward sales - reservations and exchanges for homes that will be
legally completed in a subsequent financial period.
Greenfield sites - land that has not previously been used for
development, often referring to land in agricultural use. 
Hard/soft landscaping - external elements of a development, whether
private gardens or communal areas. Hard landscaping includes
features such as paving and walls whereas soft landscaping includes
trees and plants.
Home Information Packs (HIPs) - a pack that home sellers are
required to compile containing information related to the property
they are selling, inclusive of our Energy Performance Certificate. 
House price inflation - the percentage by which house prices have
risen in a given period.
Intermediate housing - housing targeted at households with income
too low to afford market housing but high enough to be able to afford
more than the rents charged by housing associations. This can
include various forms of shared ownership housing, key worker
housing and submarket rent provision.
Land bank - a supply of potential development plots.
Legal completion - the transfer of legal ownership has contractually
passed from the seller to the purchaser.
Mixed use - development that combines two or more types of
development, eg. residential, commercial (retail, office), leisure
and/or industrial.
Mortgage approvals - written notification from the mortgage lender to
the borrower that approves the advance of a specified amount of
mortgage funds under specified conditions.
National Planning Policy Guidelines - written statements of
Government policy on nationally important land use and other
planning matters. 

Off-plan - when a building is bought pre-construction, based on plans
only, and has yet to be built.
Open market - method of asset disposal that involves advertising an
asset (eg. land) for sale and inviting bids from prospective
purchasers. The alternative of ‘private treaty’ which involves
negotiating with a single potential purchaser to agree terms for the
disposal of the asset or land.
Option - a contract which gives one side the contractual right but not
an obligation to do something. 
Owner occupier -- a home owner who lives in the house that they
own. 
Part exchange - a means of purchasing a new home whereby the
purchaser’s existing property is taken by the developer in part
payment for the new home they are buying.  
Planning consent - the permission required by most property
developers and private individuals in the UK in order to be allowed to
build on, or change the use of, a plot of land or to redevelop an
existing building. Normally granted by the local planning authority 
(eg. district council, unitary authority or county council). Consent can
be granted in either ‘Outline’, awaiting detailed plans; or ‘Detailed’
when planning drawings have been submitted and approved.
Planning permission - see Planning Consent.
Plot cost - the cost of the land on which one dwelling is built.
PPS3 – Planning Policy Statement 3; a Government document setting
out the national planning policies for housing, which regional planning
bodies and local authorities should take into account in developing
regional spatial strategies and local development frameworks. 
Recycled land - re-developed ‘brownfield’ land that has previously
been developed for urban uses such as residential, transport,
industry and community services.
Rental yield - what a landlord can expect to receive in rent expressed
as a percentage of the purchase price.
Reservation - a property that has been reserved for purchase –
normally by payment of a reservation fee – but legal contracts have
not yet been exchanged between buyer or seller to make the
transaction legally binding. 
RICS - Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, the professional body
representing and regulating property professionals and surveyors of
all types.
S106 (Section 106 Agreement) - Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990. These agreements act as a main
instrument for placing obligations on developers, often requiring them
to minimise the impact on the local community and to invest in
infrastructure to provide community benefits.
Social housing - a form of housing tenure in which the property is
owned by a Government authority, which may be central or local.
Sometimes applied more generally to affordable housing usually
offered through housing associations on a rented or shared
ownership basis (see affordable housing).
Strategic land/land bank - see forward land.
Sustainable -- sustainable development is an approach towards
development that tries to satisfy people’s basic needs and good
quality of life without compromising the quality of life for future
generations.
Urban design - the process of shaping the physical setting for life in
cities, towns and villages; the art of making places. It involves the
design of buildings, groups of buildings, spaces and landscapes, and
establishing the processes that make successful development
possible. 
Urban regeneration - concerted social, economic and physical action
to bring about a lasting improvement in the economic, physical,
social and environmental condition of an area. 
Waste management - process by which products and by-products
generated by individuals, businesses and industry are collected,
stored, transported, treated, disposed of, recycled or reused. 
Zero carbon home - one with zero net emissions of carbon dioxide
(CO2) from all energy use in the home rather than just those energy
uses that are currently part of building regulations.
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Corporate & shareholder information

Officers and Advisers

Company Secretary
Graham A Cope

Registered Office
Redrow House
St. David’s Park
Flintshire 
CH5 3RX
Registered No. 2877315

Registrars
Computershare Investor Services PLC
PO Box 82
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol 
BS99 7NH

Stockbrokers and Financial Advisers
J P Morgan Cazenove
20 Moorgate
London 
EC2R 6DA

Merrill Lynch International
Merrill Lynch Financial Centre
2 King Edward Street
London
EC1A 1HQ

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
101 Barbirolli Square
Lower Mosley Street 
Manchester 
M2 3PW

Solicitors
Linklaters
One Silk Street
London
EC2Y 8HQ

Shareholder Information 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“the Plan”)
The Company offers a dividend reinvestment plan that gives
shareholders the opportunity to use their cash dividend to buy
ordinary Redrow shares through a special low-cost dealing
arrangement.

The Plan is run by Computershare Investor Services PLC
(“Computershare”) and for further information on the Plan and
how to join, please contact Computershare at PO Box 1064, 
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 3EB 
(Telephone Number: 0870 702 0000) or the Company Secretary.

Shareholder Discounts
The Company offers a discount of 1% to shareholders off the
purchase price of a new Redrow home. In order to qualify for the
discount a purchaser must hold a minimum of 2,500 ordinary
shares in Redrow plc for a minimum of twelve months prior to the
date of reservation.

Details of our current developments are available on 
our website: www.redrow.co.uk

 





Redrow plc
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www.redrow.co.uk


